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CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC is
a market leading Real Estate Investiment Trust
investing in social housing, with a particular focus
ot specialist sacial housing in England and Wales.

The properties in the portfolio provide homes
and cnable the provision ol care to vulnerable
individuals with life-long care needs whose rent is
paid for from the Government \Welfare Budeet out

of Housing Benefits.

The demand for specialist social housing is

significant and growing,with substantial nuimbers of

people housed in properties that are inappropriate
Lo support their needs and enable them to best
interact with society, Civitas invests in specially

tailored propertics that support the care necds of

the residents, whethor that be existing, adapted

residential properties within the community, newly
built properties, or properties repurposed from
other uses,

The Civitas portfolio is very well diversified and at
the period end was in partnership with

5 Housing Associations,
{5 care providers, and
57 Local Authorities.

The key aim of Civitas Social Housing PLC from a
social iImpact perspective is to improve the quality
ol specialist social housing properties and increase
the quantity of specialist social housing whilst
demonstrating value for maney for the public purse.

Civitas is seeking to develop a high quality portiolio,
thatoffers exposure tostahle, well-diversified returns
while detivering real social benefit and impact.
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How we Performed

Financial Highlights as at 31 March

2019
20187
Profrt before £19.9 PN
tax million | =56 9
e hor
»% t 3.8 I
EPRA EPS P {80
IFRS property £826.9 P
valuation million “”ﬂl L&
i lor
N
3.3p
Dvradends declared per
{C shares) share

2019 2019
2018 JOI8
£666.5
IFRS NAV per share | 1071p {08 n IFRS NAV million [£36%¢
o b
EPRA EPS** 3.63p Company adjusted 3.63p
(diluted} 144n earcyngs** 2 600
5.0
Dividends declared pef 30p Annuahsed £45.7 . an
{Ordinary shares) per rent roll million | £
share g b on
siare
TN
IFRS NAV increase 9.29% Total shareholder 17.45%
since tPO 707 return* ** 1070

* Period from launch on 18 November 2016 to 31 March 2018
" See Appendix 1 to these financial statements for supporting workings.

*" On an Ordinary share held since leunch {(percentage not annualised).

Investment property
independently valued
at £826 9m (IFRS)

(ol

Total of 5p per
Ordinary share of
chividends declared
over the year

[i
LTI,
2 iimEanit

Civitas Social Housing PLC .

9.3% increase in IFRS
NAV per Ordinary share
("Share”) since IPQ

1G7 1 as at 31 March 2013

Annualised Rent Roll
£45.7m based upon
£826 9m of real estate at
the end of the year

4 7p per Share
Earninygs based on
comgprehensive mcome
and property revaluations

Weighted Average
Unexpired Lease Term.
24 4 years
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Key Achievements in the Period

Operational Highlights

.
O soipopentes b EOT scossrsrion L)y
a Authorities

based on long-term
leases signed with 15
Housing Assaciations

st

N S provicing dependable .

D_. supported by 113 W pElR ... accormmodaton for eeeen e evaaa®
care providers 4,072 tenams

The Good Economy, the sacial impact advisory firm, in their second annual independent Social Impact Report on Civitas, noted
encouraging evidence that Civitas can deliver on sts social objective of increasing the provision of high-quality social homes to
improve the guality of ife for low income and vulnerable people in social need. while achieving financial returns for investors

R

Funding
£52 5 mellion Scottish Total bank borrowings of
[~ Widows loan note b= HSBC £100 mithon = 1208 5 muilion equatng to
with an agreed term of three-year floating rate 22% of gross assets reflecting
(Y ten years with an all-in X revolving credit facihity N, the Portfolio Valuation of

fixed rate of 2 28% investment properties

£3505 mitiion PO
with proceeds
fully trvested by
December 20N7

Lloygs £80 mithon

™
three-year floating
rate revoiving credit
- (-] VGIVITTG Cr i

faciity

£302 muijon of
capital raised through
a C share issue in
November 2017

Levered IRR* since IPO (IFRS and Portfolio Basis)
130

125 e p— . o ———— el
120 - - - I

1o h o — = AR 7 23
L e i LN
110 : e . 7

L1 F— T —

100 0SS G oo _— =

95

18 Nov 2018 30 Sep 2017 31 Mar 2018 30 Jun 2018 3C Sep 2018 31 Dec 2018 31 Mar 2019
IFRS NAV 98.00 104.70 108 50 110.05 111 60 114.36 1510
+ aumulative
drvidends pand
Share price performance (pence)
120
115
110
105
100
95
0 e . — e e
85

18 31
Nov Jan MMar May Jul Sen Nov Jan Mar May Jul Sep Nov Jan Mar
2016 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019

‘Alternative performance measure See Appendix 1 for the calculation

Civrtas Social Housing PLC



Chairman’s Statement

Michael Wrobel Chairman

I am pleased to present the Company's second
annual shareholder report, including the audited
consolidated financial statements for the vyear
ended 31 March 2019.

The Company has made considerable progress
through the year. We have depioyed all the equity
proceeds and £208.4 million of borrowings, the latter
representing an LTV of 22% of gross assets. At the
end of the year, the Company’s property portfolio
was valued at £820.1 million, having increased from
£516.2 million and including a revaluation gain of
£3.7 million. The valuation represents a net initial
yield of 5.27% compared to an average net initial yield
on purchase of 5.67% (after initial purchase costs).

The Company’s IFRS NAV has increased by 1.5%
to 107.08p per share. The total return from IPO
to 31 March 2019 is 7.23% p.a. (on an IFRS basis)
and 11.93% p.a. (on a Portfolio Valuation basis),
incorporating profit for the period of £19.9 million.

During the period the annualised rent roll increased
by 61% to £45.7 million, resulting in EPRA earnings
of £22.6 million and EPRA diluted earnings per
share of 3.63p. For the financial year ended 31 March
2019, the Company’s ongoing charges were 1.36%.

The Company has declared total dividends of 5.075p
per Ordinary share for the year ended 31 March
2019, comprised of three quarterly dividends on the
Ordinary shares of 1.25p (in line with the target in
the launch IPO Prospectus) and a final dividend of
1.325p per Ordinary share, an increase of 6% over

Civitas Social Housing PLC -

the equivalent quarter and ahead of the inflationary
increase originally envisaged. The Company intends
to target a dividend of 5.3p per Ordinary share for
the financial year ending 31 March 2020.

The Board is grateful for the support and
encouragement of the Company’s shareholders and
the hard work of our advisers and service providers.
The Company along with its Investment Adviser is
delivering positive financial and social outcomes
which are providing direct savings to tax payers.

Portfolio

Duringtheyear,atotal of 177 properties wereacquired,
having met the Company’s stringent due diligence
requirements. At the year end the overall portfolio
comprised 591 properties located across half the
Local Authorities in England and Wales and leased to
15 Housing Associations, with support provided by
113 care providers. Aswell as representing the largest
and most diversified portfolio of supported housing,
the Company’s reputation as a knowledgeable and
reliable counterparty has materially enhanced the
levels of incoming investment enquiry.

The Company now provides homes to over 4,000
tenants with learning disabilities, autism, mental
health disorders and also for women’s refuge.

Following the events at First Priority Housing
Association, where in May 2018 we assigned all
our leases on the same terms to Falcon Housing
Association, we have increased the extent of our
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interaction with the care providers who provide
primary care services to the tenants in our
properties and who support payment against voids.
We have also used specialist consultants to speak
directly with all Local Authority commissioners on
an individual basis to confirm their full support for
each property acquired.

Civitas’s Social Impact and Continuing
Political Commitment to the Sector

The Company’s provision of supported housing
continues to make a significant positive social
impact. This is driven by the cost advantage
enjoyed by Local Authorities and the improved
well-being of tenants and their families, compared
to institutional care. This is based on independent
verification, using HM Treasury Green Book metrics
and reports from The Social Profit Calculator
and The Good Economy Partnership. Further
information is available on the Company’s website!.

These benefits are also contributing to increasing
long-term demand. It is most likely that this growth
will need to be financed by the private sector. In
this regard Laing Buisson? reports that ncone of the
political parties seeks to pose any ideological threat
to the independent sacial care sector and that, driven
by lower costs and better value for money, over 93%
of publicly paid adult specialist care services are now
outsourced to the independent sector.

Against this background, in 2018 the government
announced that it will continue to fund all supported
housing rents through the welfare system (Housing
Benefit) and will not subject rents to mainstream
Local Housing Ailowance caps.

This confirmation of the government’s long-
term commitment to supported housing has been
reflected by the Company’'s experience on the
ground, in direct interaction with Local Authorities,
namely that properly commissioned properties will
achieve long-term Local Authority commissioner
support for the appropriate rent levels required to
support the Company’s leases.

Regulation and Improving Industry

Standards

Given the specialist sector’s growth, the Regulator of
Social Housing (“RSH™) has begun to review many of
the Housing Associations with whom we work, for the
first time, The RSH has also published a report on the
risks facing the industry and the consequent need for
risk mitigation plans. During a panel discussion at the
Social Housing Finance Conference in London, the
RSH referred to the industry’s “growing pains” and
areas that require improvement, whilst noting that
there were no inherent problems with the industry
model, We are aligned with this approach and our
Investment Adviser offers its team’s considerable
social housing expertise to assist our counterparties,
for example, on governance structures and adding
operational skills.

" hitp.fewvitassocialhousing com/investor-relations/reports-ans-publications

?Laing Buisson Adult Specialist Care Third Edition 2019

Civetas Social Housing PLC



Chairman’s Statement coninued

The structure of the industry and inherent risks
are accounted for by Jones Lang LaSalle, when
undertaking the independent wvaluation of our
properties. There have been no material impacts on
our ability to collect the rental income due from our
leases.

Share Price and Rating

The Board notes the recent share price performance
of the Company and its peer group and the resuitant
move from a premium te a discount to the Net Asset
Value. The Board regularly monitors the share
rating and reviews options by which we can seek
to improve the position. All options considered
will take into account the interests of shareholders
as a whole and be balanced against protecting the
Company’s long-term standing in the sector and its
relationships with important counterparties with
whom the Company is negotiating asset purchases.

AGM and AGM Resolutions

The third Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company will be held at 2.00 p.m. on Thursday,
5 September 2019 at 3 More London Riverside,
London, SE1 2AQ, There will be a presentation from
the Investment Adviser, Civitas Housing Advisors
Limited. The full AGM notice has been posted
to all shareholders and also can be found on the
Company’s website'.

Within the AGM notice, the Company has included
a shareholder resolution asking for approval to
amend the Company’s investment policy to allow
investments to be made Scotland and Wales. Both
these parts of the UK have a welfare benefit system
that is similar to that in England and Wales with
policies that are regarded as at least as supportive of
the provision of social housing as those in England
and Wales. The Company’s core focus will remain
England and Wales.

Scotland and Northern Ireland have experienced
issues of shortage in respect of affordable housing
and the Company wishes to be in a position to
consider investments in these parts of the UK,
should any meet its criteria for investment.

Inaddition, the Company is also seeking shareholder
approval to increase the maximum aggregate
annual remuneration payable to Directors from
£200,000 to £250,000 as set out in the Company’s
Articles of Association. The Board is currently in the
process of seeking to appoint at least one additional
Director to broaden the skills and diversity of the
Board, and therefore this proposed change will
provide headroom for future appointments and
future increases in remuneration. As set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended
31 March 2019, no increase in the current level of
Directors’ fees is being proposed.

Outlook

The UK has a chronic shortage of supported
housing, with demand expected to increase further
due to arange of factors including medical advances
at birth and a growing and ageing population. The
Government sponsored Personal Social Services
Research Unit projects a 55% growth in supported
housing needs for working age adults with learning
disabilities between 2015 and 2030.

This demand-supply imbalance along with
continued government commitment to fund
supported accommodation provides strong
fundamentals for continued investment into the
supported housing sector.

The Company will continue to build on the
successful and disciplined deployment todate and to
seek opportunities to further enhance the portfolio
withinour capital resources. The Investment Adviser
has a pipeline of properties under negotiation and
in various stages of due diligence. Our confidence
is reflected in our intention to target a dividend of
5.3p for the current financial year to 31 March 2020.

Michael Wrobel
Chairman
21 June 2019

* http://eivitassocialhousing.com/investorrelations/reports-and-publications

Civitas Social Housing PLC "
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Infographics

Social Housing — A Sector in High Demand

[N Y
(\ ' Over 4.0 million social
I | homes {2.8 million 1in 5 homes
managed by Housing is a social home
Associations) H

WELCUME

£20 billion tumover’

(Housing Associations 4.5 million waiting list?

(1 in 15 million families}

only)
Supply of affordable housing completions by tenure,
Affordable homes delivery since 1991-82- England, 1881 92 10 2017-18¢
&0 0da 20 000
70 000
50 000 60 000 Afforganle Housing
56 QD0
40 000 40 00
30 000
20 000 20 00C
10 00¢ )
o Sew o meos v tabe (OGO @ SnLeme | ove Tahle LG
1997180 200405 28 718 1B THSE A 1o S OC 200 COR M 200 L OB 4K TR 6 14 201) 1200w a0 T
Dwelting stock rented from local authonties and housing Dwaelling stock rented from local authorniiies and housing
associations in Ergland, annual iigures 1971-2017 associations as a % of afl stock, England, 19712017
&m 1 + v 35% I 1 v
1 | I 1 I 1
Bem | | 309 : , .
| 1 259, 1 1 1
am f ] !
1 Housing Associatons 20%. t 1
3m
: 15% t 1 |
am 1 1 1 |
10% I 1 |
m | . 1 b |
1 I t |
om . . . 0% . . .
“an 1976 1881 1936 oo 14998 2001 7006 D1 206 1971 970 1981 1986 1951 296 200 2008 01 70°6
SOURCES:

' Sector Risk Profile — Regulator of Sorial Housing 2018.

2 The Guardian — June 2018,

+ Affordable Housing Supply 2018 — Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government.
“What's Happening to Rented Social Houstng in £ngland? Full Facts, December 2018.

Civitas Sacial Housing PLC .- s r
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Supported Housing: A Vital Role in Society

Over
4.8 mijllion social
housing units in
Great Britain!

All Supported Housing Units

651,500 Units (wath support needs) - (4% total social housing unitsy'
* 716,000 People Live twith appropriate support) in Supparted Housing-

Specialist Supported Housing (“SSH™)

171,840 People’ (with certain care needs) bive in S8H - 24% of people
Ining 10 Supported Housing {data eacludes certain care condinons)

Includes people with these long-term care needs

+ Learrung Disability » Autism
» Physical Disabriity = Homelessness
« Mental Health « Domeshic Abuse

o + Mulu-detade requiremen for stable housing
86 /0 « Average age 36 years (n Civitas portfoha

Civitas Social Housing PLC - SSH Sector Share

General Needs

2.4% of 55H

4,072 People 1n 55H texcludes certain conditions)

" Department for Communities & Locat Government — “Supported Accormmaodation Review”. Noevember 2016

? House of Commons, First Joint Report of the Communities and Local Government and Work and Pensions Committees — “Future of
Supparted Housing”: May 2017

Funding the Specialist Supported Housing Sector

2017 Total UK Government Significant Untapped
Welfare Spend £264bn® Market Opportunity
Pengions Unsemployment P
benefits Civitas Share
£112bn £2bn
42% 1%
Incapacity, disability & Personal social
injur':‘ b;neﬁts " se:vices & other c. £25bn
benefits
£44bn £35bn c.£1.4bn
16% 13%

Family benefits, income c. £1.4bn
support & tax credits for SSdH ~3% E45.7m
accommodation
£46bn oniy*

Ciwitas Annualised Rent Roll as at

18% 31 March 2019

* Office for Nationat Statistics
“ H.M. Government “Supported Accommodation Revenue, November 2016

Civitas Social Housing PLC



Infogl‘aphics continued

SSH - Costs of Housing Provision

Government Analysis’ Mencap Analysis?

Working Age People with Care Needs Working Age People with Care Needs
Weekly Rent - Range Weekly Rent - Range
£133 £277 £183.60 £194.43
Physical Disability Women’s Refuge Shared SSH Self-Catered SSH
Why does it cost more? Why does it cost more?
» 24 hour staffing = Mencap data is focused on broader
+ Installation and monitoring of CCTV mental health and excludes more
» Enhanced fire and monitoring safety expensive provision noted by the
equipment Government such as women'’s refuge
» Bespoke adaptations and construction accommodation

» Long lead time to }glace and secure tenants

Average Weekly Rent

Standard SSH Very high acuity/niche SSH
£178 £211

Civitas provides standard (mainly Learning
Disability and Autism) S§H and very high acuity/
niche SSH (addiction, women’s refuge)

“In supported living, the whole focus is on the outcomes for the
person and the small achievements, which to you orIare not huge
achievements. If someone makes a cup of tea for the first time,
someone who really has high support needs and is both deaf and
blind, we celebrate those things. That is the value for money.!”

Anne Lawn, Head of Operations at Sense

'"House of Commaons Library “Future of Supported Housing”: April 2017
*Mencap and Housing LIN “Funding Supported Housing for AH”: April 2018.

Civitas Social Housing PLC . w
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SSH - Offers Value for Money

cap

Average weekly cost of SSH

Housing cost per week

2
(including service charge) £23
Care package cost per week £1,337
Total £1,569

Average weekly cost of Registered Care

Placement cost per week!’ £1,760

Total £1,760

1 Care and accommodation tegether

Average weekly cost of
In-patient Settings (Hospital)

Placement cost per week’ £3,500

Total £3,500

1 Care and accommodation together

NATIONAL ..
: "HOUSlNG

Annual savings resulting from
Supported Housing

Older tenants

Learning Disabilities and
Mental Health

£3,000 per person/year

£15,500 per person/year

‘ y'
HOUSE OF COMMONS

“While supported housing is more
expensive than general needs
accommodation it generates
substantial cost savings for other
parts of the public sector.”

Source House of Commons Commumties and Local Government and
Woark and Pensions Committees - Apnil 2017

“The net benefit of providing supported

housing to the wider public purse was
estimated to be £3.5 billion per year.”

Source Marcus Jones MP Mirister for Local Government - 2017

“Significant cost savings to the
social care budget arose from
Supported Housing.”

Source Caroline Nokes MP, Parliamentary Under Secretary of State for
Welfare Payments - 2017

“A stay on an acute ward in
the NHS could amount te
many multiples of the cost of
the average daily rent for
working age people in
Supported Housing.”

Source Gilhan Connor, Head of Policy and Development

Cvitas Sodal Housing PLC



Infog‘l‘aphiCS continued

SSH - Demand Qutstrips Supply

What is driving increased demand for
Specialist Supported Housing (growing 5/6% a year)?

Medical e o0 .
Longer life
advance

expectan
(survival rates at birth) P ¢y

Closure of o® .i- .o, Government
° Yy policy to promote
long-stay y
hospitals Care in the
Community
At the same time:
UK Social Housing Stock UK Population

7.0MM

1980 ~—m—» 2017

National Housing Federation If the current trend continues:
125,196 .
lettings needed for
people of working /‘/\\\
age during 2015/16 29:053 +
annual shortfall in {

supported housing -y
by 2019/20 { i i

| SO—

109,556

places available for

people of working [ 3 &
age during 2015/16 ", é}"&
Ep 46,771
annual shortfall in
supported housing o8e
=,
15,640 by 2024/25 "' Ex

shortfall in supported

housing for people of s Py -
working age during g!, A
2015/16 W

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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SSH - Local Authority Commissioning

Central Government (Housing Benefit) meets cost of Specialist Supported Housing via Local Authorities

Requires:

L ocal Authorities Adapted Property Rent levels
responsible for For specific i o oot 1o
commissioning individuals with SUltablf! Care LP IpA d tc

Specialist long-term care ’ Provider ) ocal Authority
Housing Benefit

Suppo_rted needs Specialist Officers
Housing Housing
Association
s S \, J . S e A

.
.
AR R R R R R R N N A .

. ) \
: . } 1 Needs of .
. . Individuat "
. . \ S
4 Y . . - —
. " ™ .
. ) 2 Level of Care '
Rent determined . L 1 Rent fevels
- ‘o . cenfirmed and
against 4 key . ‘e ’ . ]
riteria: . - ~ - paid to Housing
¢ ' : Type and : Association
‘e ’ 3 Adaptationof |-
- Property 5 L
L A . . W,
: P “ -
: Exempt .
’ } 4 Accommodation]®
L Status )

Civrtas Social Housing PLC



Infographics contimued

SSH ~ Contractual Framework

Care
Provider

Delivery of Care

’ Tenant

Local Authority

e

Department for

Funding under Local Government
Finance Settiement {including for
care and for housing support)

Communities and
Local Government

Civitas Social Housing PLC -
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.=+ + Service Levet agreement/Payment tor Vioids or broader obligations » «= . .
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=
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Civitas is Enhancing Professionalism in the Sector

CHA/Civitas lead the sector by introducing innovations to protect lease counterparties and
future proof investments

KEY FACTS

aand pI-C.moted by CHA/Cijy; tas ¢
o

Rents mmdependently
tested and set at
mediar tevel

Full property
Sociat Impact i property
: N refurbishmeant paid
n gll N
ar new

Housing
Associgtions Authonty
(“HA") (LA

Void tund created
to provide financial
in law or formal buffer
govarnment policy)

agemen
cperators

dernaind an i
of properties

Civitas Social Housing PLC



Infogl‘aphics cont:nued

Examples of existing care provider relationships, England and Wales

& Exemplar

Hopin{oe

PRIORY

ADULT CARE

\V 4

(g——— voyagecare

- @cmg

‘Fieidbay——g 5 i
@cg

okt 5o M SR BN

O

lifeways~ 5

T
L L&

ish, — CareTech

G 1]
Hne Foster Care

accomp

moke every doy
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Civitas Housing Association Partners

AH>S

sy blaead typor Sadkhtnry

CHRYSALIS SUPPORTED

oS P ﬁ ASSOCIATION (C3A) LTD
> - B BESe Heteoh ¥ r0un Siawl
. B F ot

i

SN
W

@ncircle YFALGON {;\% &) Hioedate

Thnsbey SR it HOUSING ASSOCIATION

SUPPORTED l | : INCLUSIONHOUSING o MYSPACE
HOUSHG -

Pivotal @ TRINITY

Housing Associations’ comments

Mark Adams, Harbour Light

“Harbour Light Assisted Living has been working with Civitas Social Housing PLC for a couple of years now, we
have always found them to be a very robust partner in terms of their sector involvement and in seeking out
new approaches to better the provision of essential supported living services. Civitas brings the benefits of
a large corporate structure, in transparency, resource and expertise and is able to assist and support housing
provider partners effectively as a result. We look forward to working with and developing our own housing
provision for the many vulnerable adults we support for many years to come.”

Colin Mackell, Chrysalis

“Working with Civitas ensures that Chrysalis are supported to develop services with key strategic partners
to deliver effective housing care and support solutions to some of the UK’s most vulnerable clients. Civitas
have always supported our ambition, our development and have been a valued partner in the past and will
continue to be in the future. It is because of funds like Civitas that vital, lifesaving and life enhancing services
are able to be realised and we look forward to a very productive future working together.”

Neil Brown, Inclusion

“The benefit for us of working with Civitas is that we share a common purpose of delivering real social impact
through the provision of high-quality accommodation and services. Delivering real improvements in the
wellbeing of the people we house, who are among the most vulnerable people in society.”

Kevin Appleby, BeST

“Civitas have been great to work with and we have particularly valued their committed approach and the
diverse skills and professionalism of their team in supporting us. We look forward to working with them on
the future acquisitions of much needed community-based supported housing for vulnerable adults.”

Civrtas Social Housing PLC



Infogl‘aphics continued

Geographically Diversified North East

') Properties 63
=

'31 % of funds invested 70%
=
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*As at 31 March 2019, including completed properties only.
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Diversified by Registered Provider

Rental Income by Registered Provider!
12%

12%
24%
30%

10%
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Market Value by Registered Provider!
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12% 10%
24%—\ \‘ \r
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'Asg at 31 March 2018, including completed properties anly.

Assets by Registered Provider!
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Tenancies by Registered Provider®
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Case Studies

Cas

e Study: Comer Road

High quality supported living accommodation
comprising 20 state-of-the-art self-contained

apartments
Key Metrics
Total investment* £4.2 million
Yield on Cost* 55%
IFAS Net Intial Yield 53%
Units 20
Purchase Date August 2018

High-Quality living accommodation:

20 state-of-the-art self-contained apartments
24-hour care and support for individuals
with learning disabilities

Purpose built to high specification:

»

»

-

»

En-suite wet rooms

Facilities with alarm technologies

Assistive technology enabled control panels
Concierge control

Wheelchair access

Living spaces tailored to needs

excluding purchase costs.

Civitas Social Housing PLC --
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Case Study: Beamish Court

High quality supported living accommodation
comprising 12 state-of-the-art self-contained
apartments

Key Metrics

Total Investment* £4 2 mullion
Yield on Cost* 5 5%
IFRS Net initial Yield 55%
Units 12
Purchase Date Qctober 2017

High-Quality living accommodation:

« 12 state-of-the-art self-contained apartments

» 24-hour care and support for individuals with
learning disabilities

Purpose buailt to high specification:

+ En-suite wet rooms

« Facilities with alarm technaologies

»  Assistive technology enabled control panels
« Concierge control

*  Wheelchair access

+ Living spaces tailored to needs

"excluding purchase costs.

gt [T
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Case Studies continued

Case Study: Prinstead House

Prior to its refurbishment in 2017, Prinsted in Surrey was
a private residence. The building had interesting features
and was a fantastic space, but due to a lack of investment
the property needed some vital improvements and was
not living up to its potential.

A refurbishment was needed to reconfigure the building,
creating new homes for multiple residents on a shared basis.

Key Financral Metrics

Total Investment* £2 6 million
Yield on Cost* 6 0%
IFRS Net Intial Yieid 53%
Units 8
Purchase Date Apnl 2317
Key Metrics % Value
Time/Value/Scheme %%‘M 7.2
Specification/Property b 563
Scheme Adaptations 109
Cost Contributions 135
Developer's Margin 121
100.0{£2 6m)

Transforming Prinsted

»  Work began in May 2017

» Worked closely with our partners to ensure a smooth
transition into supported living accommodation

» Required extensive refurbishment, stripping areas of
the property back to the structure and installing new
facilities

» Decoration undertaken to ensure homely and inviting
for all who live there

Making a home at Prinsted

+ Transformed to provide a home for eight people on a
shared basis

« All bedrooms include en-suite facilities, with
kitchenettes, a shared open plan living area and a large
bathroom

+ A sensory room has been created, along with a large
utility room

+ Externally, an outbuilding was given an upgrade,
transforming it into a day office

= Prinsted is situated near to shops and is close to Gatwick
Airport and links to M23 and M25

» The property is ideally placed for residents and provides
a comfortable home for all

Civitas Social Housing PLC .
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Case Study: Foresters

Built during the wvarly 1900, Foresters comprises two
large semi-detached villas, full of character and full
of potential. That’s exactly what we believed when we
became aware of this property in Dorset, which had the
makings of a fantastic scheme.

Not only were the properties situated close to the town
venbie ul Weymouth, rnaking them highly acceseilil, Ly
also had the capabilities to provide space for multiple
residents. We were keen to bring this building up to date,
with new features in classic surroundings, and couldn’t
wail to get started.

Key Finanoat Metrcs

Total Investment™ £2 5 million
Yield on Cost* 6 0%
IFRS Net Initial Yield 53%
Units 15
Purchase Date June 2017
Key Metrics %e Value
TimefValue/Scheme 78
Specification/Property 495
Scheme Adaptanons 18.4
Cost Contributions 133
Developer's Margin m
100.0 {£2 5m)

The conversion of Foresters

»  Work began in November 2017

= Buildings converted into spaces for 15 people, living on
a shared basis

» Extensive renovation, stripped back the structure to the
bare walls, which then allowed the installation of new
equipment and facilities

« Internal areas weie redecorated, bathrooms and kitchens
were installed and where required, specialist equipment
was fitted, including hoists

« Due to the history of the building, unique features were
retained

Making a home at Foresters

«  With work now compiete on Foresters, the property
provides a home for 15 people

» Mixture of bedroom types with en-suites, a shared
open plan communal kitchen and a living room

« Gardens renovated to provide external communal space

»  Property brought back into use for a local care provider,
who specialises in care foradults with learning difficulties,
including those with high dependerice physical needs

» Foresters is situated close to local bus routes and
shops within a haif-mile of Weymouth town centre

Civrtas Soctal Housing PLC



Portfolio Analysis

Capital Deployment as at 31 March 2019
Track record of capital deployment with attractive returns and further opportunities

. Total iInvested — Debt
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400
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Capital deployment (£ nullion}

106.0

Mar Ju Sep Dec Mar Jun Sep Dec Mar

n
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Security of Income by Lease Expiry as at 31 March 2019

100% fully repairing Long-term,
and insuring leases, infiation-linked,
no gross to net rent loss lease income
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Social Value
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Investment Adviser’s Report

Civitas Social Housing PLC -

Paul Bridge

Chief Executive Officer

Paul is a founder of CHA and has over 20 vears’ experience working at a
senjor level in the social housing sector. He is the non-executive chairman
of Thames Valley Charitable Housing Association and was previously CEQ
of Homes for Haringey, a Registered Provider where he was responsible for
800 staff and 21,000 homes.

Andrew Dawber
Director

Andrew is a founder of CHA and has been active in the social housing sector
since 2012. He was part of the team that founded the private investment
company, Funding Affordable Homes, and was the adviser and founder of PF1
Infrastructure PLC, the first publicly traded social infrastructure fund.

Tom Pridmore
Director

Specialist in real estate and residential development finance. Co-founder of
forward-finance based Funding Affordable Homes. Qualified lawyer with over
19 years’ experience in real estate investment and development. Responsible
for sanctioning all property investment advice and portfolio monitoring.

Graham Peck
Finance Director

Graham joined CHA in 2018 and has over 10 years’ experience within real
estate finance with a focus on healthcare and alternative assets. He was
formerly the CFO for pan-European private equity real estate investor Palm
Capital. Prior to this Graham was at Octopus Healthcare where he headed up
the finance function for LSE listed MedicX Fund and the MedicX Health UK
Funds. Graham is a Chartered Accountant.

Eleanor Corey
Transaction Director

Previously from international law firm CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro
Olswang where she has practised in their real estate team for over 12 years.
Eleanor has extensive experience in all aspects of real estate management,
investment, development and finance, having undertaken a secondment in
the in-house corporate real estate team at Lloyds Banking Group, and most
recently having been the lead associate on a large town centre regeneration
project for a national housebuilder.
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“Civitas Housing Advisors Limited (*CHA”), the Investment Adviser to
the Company, is pleased to report on the second period of operation
for the Company for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.”

Paul Bridge, Chief Executive Officer, Civitas Housing Advisors Limited

Introduction
Civitas is a leading supported living and social housing property investor which is pursuing a clear growth
strategy whilst spearheading the maturation and professionalisation of the sector in which it operates.

We made considerable progress through the vear, firstly in implementing our strategy, and secondly in working
with all stakeholders to drive the development of supported living provision in England and Wales.

Rental Income
The Company’s rental income has grown substantially during the year as additional properties were acquired
and existing properties enjoyed annual indexation of rents.

As at 31 March 2019, the run rate level of rental income was £45.7 million (2018: £28.4 million) and this
is anticipated to grow further as additional bank finance is secured and invested into supported housing
properties to achieve the target average 35% leverage based on gross assets.

The run rate rental income is supported by a broadly-based portfolio and as at 31 March 2019 the key statistics
of the portfolio are set out below.

31 March 30 June 30 September 31 December 31 March
Period 2018 2018 2018 2048 2019
Investment {£m) 472 508 619 674 755
Properties 114 440 521 557 591
Tenancios 2,621 2,845 3,440 3,746 4,072
Loval Authonies 109 123 140 144 157
Housing Associations 1 12 18 15 15
Care Providarg 64 71 93 98 1n3
WAULT {years) 241 254 251 247 24.4

Investment Strategy

The Company has continued to pursue the strategy
to huild a high-quality and diversified portfolio of
social housing with a majority focus on housing for
individuals with long-term care needs,

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has built one
of the largest and moest diversified such portfolios
in England and Wales providing long-term stable
accommodation for over 4,000 underlying tenants.

The portfolio has been structured to date with the
intention of achieving the following objectives:

+ Steady income for shareholders and capital
growth

» Properties to be within the social/
government/local  authority  sponsored
sectors in England and Wales where the
requirement to provide accommeodation is
supported by government legislation

+ Achieve diversification from working with
a wide range of Local Authorities, Housing
Associations and care providers

Civrtas Social Housing PLC
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+ Provide accommodation for individuals
with a range of long-term care-based
needs and suppott other local authority
accommodation requirements including
homelessness, addiction, domestic violence
and NHS step down in addition to general
needs social housing

+ Rental income to be met wholly or
substantially from state funds. In the case
of care-based Specialist Supported Housing
(almost 100% of the portfolio today}, this is
expected to be 100% state funded

» Long-term leases signed with Registered
Providers (Housing Associations and
Local Authorities) to enable them to offer
accommodation on a long-term basis to
individuals often with life-long care needs

+« Leases to benefit from indexation and
typically to be repairing and insuring

« Properties whose rental income, valuation
and demand profile has a low correlation
to the general economy, residential or
commercial property sectors

Civitas Social Housing PLC *. ¢

+ Measurable social impact that promotes the
well-being of tenants and offers value for
money for the state.

Strengthening the Team

During the year we have continued to strengthen
the Investment Advisory team and to widen its
skills base with expertise in social housing and
social care.

Much has been written recently of the growing
importance of Local Authority and individual
preference for supported housing as a means of
delivering high-quality care in the community that
also offers value for money.

An understanding of both healthcare delivery and
sacial housing need is firmly built into our eight-
step due diligence process that governs how we
assess and due diligence potential acquisitions of
supported housing.

To complement our expertise in social housing we
have added senior resource from the care industry
both at a corporate and an operational level,
including the recruitment of two former specialist
care industry CEQOs.
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Reflecting the growing scale of the portfolio,
we have also appointed a new director of asset
management with 30 years’ experience gained from
working at a senior level in some of the largest
Housing Associations in the UK and managing large
portfolios of social homes and care homes.

Market Update

The supported housing sector continues to
experience strong growth, and this is predicted to
increase significantly into the future. The sector
has recently enjoyed the most significant growth
in investment (CAGR 7.8%) of all parts of adult
specialist care in the UK.

Investors of various types have responded to the
strong demand for the provision of long-term
supported housing and have been encouraged in
this by the clear statements of support made by
the Government. In August 2018, the Government
made the following announcement:

“Ministers recognise that supported housing
is a vital service for some of the most
vulnerable people in our communities, and
last year consulted on possible alternative
funding options. Having listened to views
from providers, stakeholders and councils,
the Government has decided housing
benefit will remain in place to fund this
accommodation”

Whilst there was no suggestion that state funding
would not be avajlable to meet both care and
accommeodation costs of vulnerablie adults, the fact
that the current system of provision from central
Government, in the form of Housing Benefit, has
been reaffirmed, was taken very positively by the
sector. It is also worth noting that no political
party dissented from this view and there does not
appear to be any difference of opinion amongst the
mainstream political parties on the principle that
vulnerable people who cannot work should receive
full state support for their care and accommeodation.

Against this positive macro background, smaller
specialist Housing Associations (“RPs”) are
becoming further engaged in the sector as
registered providers and lessees, with a number
passing the 1,000-unit milestone that brings about
increased scrutiny from the Regulator of Sgcial
Housing (“RSH™).

'{aing Buisson Adult Specialist Care Third Edition 2019.

We welcome this scrutiny as evidence of the
increasingly important role our sector plays in
housing provision in England and Wales. We interact
very regularly with the RSH and are pleased to
report that we have a highly positive and productive
working relationship with them. We know the RSH
is actively working through the various issues that it
has raised, and we are contributing via our Housing
Association partners to that work where that is
appropriate. We believe that the RSH is supportive
of the initiatives we are undertaking to strengthen
and professionalise the sector in which we operate.

During a panel discussion at the Social Housing
Finance Conference in London, which Civitas co-
hosted, the RSH acknowledged the industry’s
“growing pains” and areas for improvement, whiist
noting that there was “nothing inherently wrong”
with the industry model. We are actively involved in
working with all our RP counterparties to help them
grow and improve, providing, for example, advice on
governance structures and adding operational skills,

The initiatives we are undertaking include a series
of unigue private seminars for all our 15 Housing
Association partners (RPs).

During 2018/19, these on-going seminars
have focused on the following subjects with a
view to enhancing quality, best practice and
professionalism:

+ March 2018 - Governance and Regulatory
Health Checks

+«  June 2018 - Manchester Chartered Institute
of Housing Conference/Dealing with Growth

«  October 2018 - Understanding the Civitas
Eight-Step Due Diligence Protocol

+  April 2019 - The Civitas Social Value Project

« May 2089 - Sector Perceptions and
Increasing Understanding of Value Add

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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In addition to this ongoing activity (which
complements and supports our more formal due
diligence and monitoring activities), at our recent
Capital Markets Day* we set out seme of the other
practical ways in which we have lent our support to
our RP partners.

In summary the activities we have undertaken in
2018/19 include the following:

+ Engagement with asset management reviews

+ Recommendation of new independent board
members with leading sector experience

» Review of health and safety procedures and
audits

« Comment on the structure and delivery of
risk appraisals and business plans including
for presentation to the RSH

+ Supporting staff recruitment

« Assistance in the review of group and
operational structures

We would anticipate that as the RPs continue to
mature and improve, this will be acknowledged and
reflected in the RSH’s commentary on the sector.

Leases

The Company has typically entered into long-
term inflation adjusted leases for periods in
excess of 20 years with RPs, where management
and maintenance are provided by the RPs. The
Company’s portfolio currently has a WAULT of 24.4
years.

In approximately a third of the Company's
portfolio, the leases with the RPs are supported
by agreements of the same 20-year-pius length
with the underlying care provider. Through these
agreements, the care provider is in effect taking
responsibility for broader lease obligations around
rent and occupancy, The remainder of the portfolio
benefits from more standard underlying service
level agreements with the care provider which
would be expected to be rolled into a new service
level agreement at the end of the initial period.

? hitp://civitassocialhousing.com/capital-markets-day-presentation

Civitas Social Housing PLC '+ .+,

Where the counterparty is a Local Authority, or
where we believe it is in the Company’s interest,
the Company may (as noted at the time of IPQO)
consider unexpired leases of not less than 10
years. This would reflect common constraints on
Local Authorities from entering into longer-term
arrangements.

As part of our assessment of the supported housing
sector we have also given active consideration to
the structure of leases that are entered into with
RPs by the Company and other landlords. We have
used our long-standing experience of different
mainstream and “alternative” real estate sectors
and economic and social infrastructure investment
markets to provide a form of benchmarking.

This has led to discussions with a number of our
larger housing association partners, with JLL, with
our lenders and also directly with the RSH who are
seeking to promote better contingency planning as
opposed to commenting formally on lease-length
or constitution.

The principal objectives of this review have been
two-fold. Firstly, to set out more formally the steps
we would take in the very unlikely event that the
formal action of government or local authorities
reduces directly the ability of the RPs to meet their
obligations under the leases with the Company even
when all forms of mitigation are taken into account.
This has commonly been referred to as a “Force
Majeure Clause”. Secondly, to ensure that where
it is deemed appropriate, there should be a form
of “collar” and “cap” on the growth of indexation
under the leases.

Both of these are common features that are seen
regularly in other real estate sectors, do not affect
valuations and are acceptable to stakeholders.

From our discussions we expect that changes such
as these will be appreciated both by the RPs and by
the RSH.




Working with Care Providers

The provision of care within the properties owned
by the Company is a fundamental driver of both
the demand for supported housing and the ability
of properties to be defined as exempt Specialist
Supported Housing. This in turn affects the rent
and service charge levels that can be achieved and
sustained.

Understanding the extent and nature of the care
delivery is therefore an essential part of the overall
due diligence process. We have placed considerable
focus during the year on our relationships with care
providers, as they are a key driver of the success of
our strategy.

During the vyear, where we have been offered
properties in which the extent of the care provision
(typically measured by care hours per person per
week) is in our view limited or marginal, we have
declined those properties on the basis that their
status as exempt Specialist Supported Housing
could be open to challenge in the future.

The provision of specialist care is a fragmented
sector with many smail, local providers and a
limited number of larger national providers. The

Company has sought to focus as far as possible on
the larger providers which have depth of experience
and a wide network.

The Company daes not enter into any agreements
directly with care providers (these are between the
care provider and the Local Authority, Housing
Association and the tenant) and has no legal or
other responsibility for the delivery or quality of
care. That said, we take an active interest in the
quality and amount of care that is being provided
as part of our asset selection, due diligence and
monitoring activities.

For-profit care providers within the top 251
{measured by number of beds) in the UK (as at
December 2018) out of approximately 20,000 care
providers are responsible for the delivery of care
into 34% of the Company’s portfolio. By comparison,
those same care providers are responsible (as at
December 2018) for 11% of the beds within the
overall adult specialist healthcare sectar in the UK.

This is a result of our strategy of seeking to work
with these larger, more mature care providers
whilst not ignoring the merits of the hest of hreed
local organisations.

In addition, the Company also works with five out of the top 10 care providers who represent 20% of the

Company’s portfolio.

20% of Civitas Portfolio™

" This does not include National Care Group who provide care services to
approximately 12% of the Civitas properties, but who operate via a number
of individual care providers that are separately represented in league tabies,

but if taken together would most probably be in the top 10.

PRIORY

ADULY CARE
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Carelech
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The benefits of building long-term strategic
relationships with care providers are clear:

iy They assist with the eight-step due
diligence programme and with our angoing
monitoring

iiy They have also become a catalyst for the
origination of high-quality properties both
built and to be acquired on completion

iiiy Most importantly, they provide a high
standard of care for our tenants.

Social Impact Investing

The Investment Adviser with its Head of Impact
Investment has, since IPO, established embedded
processes that evaluate the social impact that
is delivered from its investment activities and
portfolio, with a particular focus on helping tenants
achieve improved outcomes in their lives, providing
value for money, cost saving for the public purse
and increasing the quality and availability of social
housing.

Specialist social impact consultants, The Good
Economy, have recently published an independent
Annual Impact report which confirms that Civitas
is “an authentic impact investor according to the
IFC Principles for Impact Management”.

This report has been based on extensive research
undertaken by The Good Economy incorporating
site visits, meetings with tenants and their families
and discussions with local authority commissioners,
RPs, care providers and the RSH.

This report formed the backbone for a further
independent study by the Manchester-based
consultants, the Social Profit Calculator, with the
aim of attaching a monetary value to the social
impact and value for money that are driven from
the Company’s portfolio. The study is based upon
government metrics utilising HM Treasury’s Green
Book data.

The study considered a wide range of tenants
in detail and measured the monetary value
from improved health and wellbeing, reduced
isolation and improved relationships, the benefits
of independent living and in certain instances
the enhanced opportunity for employment and
attaining qualifications.

They reported that Civitas’ portfolio has produced
£114 million of social value — including £59 million
each year of direct savings to the taxpayer, and
when projected over the course of our leases
it equates to more than £1 billion in potential
savings to the taxpayer. This reflects the fact that
enabling disabled people to live in the community
is not only much better for their wellbeing, but also
significantly cheaper for the taxpayer than other
forms of accommodation such as institutions.

The Social Profit Calculator and The Good Economy
Partnership calculated that £3.50 is created in
social value for every £1 which Civitas has invested.

Further information on the social value created
by the Civitas portfolio can be found in the Good
Economy’s latest Impact Report, available on the
Company’s Website®.

Looking Ahead: The Investiment Pipeline
The Investment Adviser has been successful in
establishing strategic relationships with a wide
range of property vendors including national care
providers, regional and local developers, RPs and
Local Authorities.

Having led the completion of over 100 transactions,
the Company enjoys a leading reputation in the
markets in which it operates and has demonstrated
a proven ability to design and structure transactions
that have led to successful acquisitions for the
Company.

? hitp./civitassociathousing.comfinvestorrelations/reports-and-publications
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As we mention at the start of the report, the
Investment Adviser’s team has been expanded so
that it now includes senior professionals with both
operational care and social housing experience in
addition to skills in real estate, investment funds
and corporate finance.

This combination has been noted by asset owners,
sector professionals and advisers and has resulted
in an increase in the range and depth of projects
to which we are introduced, often being the first
or only party to be approached. The sources of
potential property purchases, both built and in
construction to be acquired on completion, is today
being abtained fram four main sources:

» National and Regional Care Providers

« Housing Associations and Local Authorities
» Regional and Local Specialist Developers

« National and Regional Charities

»  Other Private Sector owners of Assets

As a result of the Company’s strategic relationships
in the sector, the investment pipeline continues
to build and today stands at ¢.£210 million of
potential transactions in various stages of due
diligence. These transactions, which are subject
to the successful completion of the Comipany's
due diligence process, reflect non-legally binding
commitments and are representative of the
Company's reputation in the sector. The first of
these transactions are likely to be able to complete
in the next couple of months.

As part of the Company’s plans to seek further
diversification within the specialist areas of the
regulated social housing sector, we anticipate that,
in due course, pipeline transactions will include not
just homes for tenants with care needs based around
learning disability and autism, but also dependency,
homelessness, key worker and the desire to release
hospital beds through the use of “step down”
accommodation associated with the NHS. In each
case, the Company intends to operate the same or
similar model with a Housing Association entering
into a long-term arrangement with the Company
and providing on the ground property services.

We are also exploring opportunities in both
Scotland and Northern Ireland.

We look forward to continued progress over the
forthcoming months as we continue to implement
our strategy and grow and diversify our portfolio.

Civitas Housing Advisors Limited
Investment Adviser
21 june 2019

Civitas Social Housing PLC



Extract from The Good Economy Impact Report, 2019

The full Impact Report can be found at www.civitassociaihousing.com

THE
GOOD
ECONOMY

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Good Economy’s second annual impact review shows that Civitas has
established itself as a leading investor in Specialist Supported Housing (SSH].
We consider Civitas to be an authentic “impact investor” according to the
International Finance Corporation {IFC] Principles for Impact Management.

The Good Economy [TGE) fings that Civitas has-

€ Aclear intent to deliver a social goal.

e Anmpact thesis based on which we can assess its cantrijution to smpact,

e An impact measurement and management systemn linked to improvement in social outcomes.

Civitas' sacial objective 1s to heip tackle the chronic shertage of social housing in the UK, with a current focus on specialist
supported housing for vulnerable adults.

Cwitas uses the capital raised from investors to buy properties and leases them to registered housing providers to manage, with
rental income used to fund investor returns, Lease-based models are associated with impact risks as described by the Regulator
for Social Housing [RSH] 1n therr sector nsk prefile addendum report, published in April 2018, We believe Civitas recognises these
risks and challenges We positively view the proactive steps that Civitas 1s taking to work with its Registerad Providers [RPs] and
the REH ta mitigate risks and build RP capacity.

Overall, Civitas 1s growng at what we consider to be a steady rate with a total of 597 properties, support:ng 4072 vulnerable
adults as of 31 March 2019, & 18% growth in tenancies since September 2018. Also, for the first time, the social value of Civitas'
portfolio has been reviewed in monetary terms and been independently calculated to have produced £114 milhon of social value,
in our view, they are also making a positive contribution to improving the supply and quality of social housing that in turn has the
potential to make an impartant difference to the lives of vuinerable people.

Impact Assessment Methodology

TGE assesses the social impact of Civitas against its impact thesis, Civitas' social objective 18 to Increase the avallability and
quality of social housing, particularly for vulnerable people. By doing this they aim to improve the health and weil-being of their
tenants while providing good value for money for the pubtic purse. Civitas also has a respansibility to manage their mpact risk
1.e the nsk of negative effects,

This report relies on the following:

© An analysis of the standardised output data related to the key social perfermance indicators for the Civitas
portfolio collected by Civitas Housing Advisors, the investment manager.

& Interviews with key stakeholders including representatives of the RSH, partner RPs and Care Providers (CPs)

@ The results of an outcomes survey for Civitas tenants developed in partnership with Social Profit Calculator [SPC).

& SPC’s calculatrons of the social value creatad by the Civitas portfolio.

In this year's Impact Report TGE has deepened its assessment of three areas the outcomes for Indniduats, managing impact risk

and the additionality provided by Civitas. We have also considered the fund’s contribution ta the UN Sustainable Develepment
Goals -~ See Appendix 1.

Civitas Social Housing PLC .
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Social Impact Analysis and Res

irerease the supply of specialist housing
Over the tast 8 months Civitas has added 68 homes to the:r portfolio, Of these homes 52% have been prought mto SSH for the first
fime. I cur ppinion this provides high sddmonabiry for the Fung

improve the auality of speciaist housng

Civitas take proactive efforts to monitor and improve the guality of their housing. As well as identifying a scheme of work 10
upgrade thew prapsrties at the paint of purchase, they have recruited a Director of Asset Management to oversee portfolio
managerent,

Increase Terant Weli-being

From the tenant cutcomes survey, our main findings wers

© Support workers reported that over haif [53%) of therr resident’s mental health has gat better since moving

into therr accemmodation.

96% of resigents corning from hospitals into a Crvitas property have sgéen an improvement in ther mental health,
53% of residents were “mostly” or "completely” satisfied with their physical health, and 47% have said that this
IS an improverment since moving 1~to therr accommodsation.

30% of family members stated that tre resident’s motivation and aspirations have increased since moving mto
speciatist accommodaticn.

e 00

Va.ue for money

Our work with SPC also enabled us to calcutate the monetary vaiue of the Social Impact, Economic Benefits and Fiscal Savings
generated by the Civitas portfouc The findings show that alongside the £45.7 million annual rent that the Fund currently
penerates, It also produces a total social value of £114 melion per year, including £58 milbion of direct savings to the taxpaye..

Mitsgating Imoact Risks

We have found that Civitas are actively engaging w.th the RSH and are taking steps to better support their RPs and the wider
sectofr Specifically, they are working to:

© Update their leases - aiming to give RPs more financial security

@ Capacity bulld within RPs - including helping RPs recrult new board members

& Creating a Community Interest Company [CIC] to act as a $SH support body.

Social Partners

Alongside its core business, Civitas 1s continuing to grow 1ts social partrerships As well as furthering their relationships with Crnisis
and The Choir with No Name, Civitas row also supports The House of St Barnabas and Wormen in Sacial Housing {WISH),

Wider Impact Investment Role

Cvitas are also using their position as leaders in the market to promote impact investing more widely They have recently
become a founding member of The Big Exchangs (TBE] TBE is an online platform that enables impact investors to easily find
regulated retall funds that ain to deliver a financial return alongside positive so2ial or environmental Impacts,

Livitas Sadial Housing PLC
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Conclusions

I our conclusions we have chosen to highbght three areas which TGE tegards as strengths of Ciwitas angd three areas where
there 1s room for iImprovement a.ong with assocliated mitigants.

Strengths

9 A stated commitment to transparency and public accountability.

0 Demonstrated improvements in both the supply and guality of Specialist Supported Housing.

G The positive support of the well-beirg of vulnerable adults, with particslarly positive outcomes
for those who were previously in long-term hospital care.

Potential Weaknesses and Mit gating Actiors
O The specialist RPs in the SSH sector ¢an have umisd mahtutional capacity and inancial strength.

Acnitical success factar for Civitas s partnering with hugh quality, fit for purpose RPs and Care Prowiders. The nisks arising from
the patential failure of an RP are partially mitigated by Civitas’ capacity-building work with existing RPs, careful due diligence

and selection of new partner RPs. Civitas have regular monitoring visits with all RPs and have the ability ta re-assign leases to
a replacement RP in the case of non-perfarmance.

e Civitas 15 working within the ~ewly deve.oping 8SH sector where in some localities there s lack of effective
communicat ons and policy alighment between tocal authonities, RPs and care providers & g. on rent setting.
TGE considers Civitas to have a leadership and staff team with the appropriate skills and knowledge required 1o build trusted
relations and views positively the recent additions to the team, including indwiduals with a background in social housing and
care, It has the potential to use its investor role to support iImproved communications and efficacy within the SSH market.

e Civitas has no contractual relat-onsmip with i1s ult mate beneficiaries - the often vuiherable adults that ive
i O vitas-owned prope-ties,
We welcome Civitas” openness to carrying out a tenant survey tris year. This provides Civitas with direct information from
tenants, care workers and therr famiies Itis .mportant that Civitas also monitars the quality of RPs tenant engagement and
communications and their compliarnce with the Tenant Involvernent and Empowerment Standard.

TGE believes that private investment can piay an impartant role in supporting the needed growth and development of sociat
housing, including specialist supported housing. There have been some concerns raised Dy market commentators as to the
efficacy of models such as this ane. It 1s our wiew that Civitas (s cammitted to continuing to develop s approach and tackle
emergent challenges as they anss. We believe 1t 15 making a pesitive contribution to the development of a sustainable social
housing sectar that benefits those most In need.

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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REGISTERED PROVIDER — NEW WALK CIC, STOCKTON

Investment date

July 2017
w
«walk
Total potential number of residents
194
Location: Stockton
About New Walk

New Walk CIC was established to provide supported accermmodation to people at nsk of hemelessness in Stockton and
surrounding areas in the North East. They take on all their tenants from Local Authornity referrals. When a resident joins New
Walk they typically start in @ supported housing scheme with shared facilities, before moving inte & shared flat, and then
finally transitioning into an independent home Throughout their stay at New Walk, tenants have access to a mentor to provide
whatever support 1s needed to become more independent and be able to sustain therr tenancies. Imtially this may involve
helping with practical tasks e.g. cleaning, and applying for housing benefits - but over time it will transition into encouraging
residents to take the next step towards independence, including finding stable employment.

Civitas and New Waik

Before Civitas purchased the 41 praperties in July 2017, these homes were owned by various iandlords. By buying the property and
leasing it back to New Walk, Civitas i1s able to ensure the property remains in the socral sector for the long term, It also frees up
capital for New Walk so they have the potential to buy more properties and scate up their impact.

Civitas Social Housing PLC er N
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NEW SPECIALIST HOUSING — BEAMISH COURT, OLLERTON

Investment date

TRIN.W Outober 70V

B . T P

Total potentiai number of residents
Futures

Locatigr Nattinghamshire

About Beamish Court

Beamish Court is a set of 12, newly built, specialist supportes flats in Nottinghamshire. Completed in May 2018, these homes
were purpose buiit as §SH. Trinity Housing Associaticn are the RP and responsible for carrying out repairs and logking after the
building. Eden Futures are the Care Prov der, they work closely with the lacal authonty to ensure resident’s move in comfartably
and have aprroprnate care and suppart.

Avyear on from when the development was completed, the property currently houses 10 residents who have come from a mixture
of specialist facilities. a locat bram ijury hospital, resigential care homes and a low secure mental health hospital One of these
residents, Adie, moved to Bearnish Court in May 2018, This scheme has delivered much needed housing for vulnerable people
and has enabled people to move along the care pathway and gain greater independence.

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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CARE PROVIDER - AUTISM PLUS, THORNE

investment date
June 20118

(‘;kauﬁsm plus

Total potential number of residents
44

About Autism Plus

Autism Plus was founded over 30 years age by a number of parents wno bought a large property and converted It into a
resdential Care home for their children with autism. Since then it has evcived inta @ CQC regulated Care Provider, supperting
adults and young people with autism, learning disabilities and mental health conditions

The anginat house - Thorne House - and six cther Autism Plus properties were sold ta Civitas in June 2018. At this point most
of those houses were converted from residentiat Care homes t¢ Speciabist Supported Housing [SSHE with Falcon Housing
Association coring In as the RP. Throughout this process Autism Plus ensured that the same support warkers were allocated
to tenants to minimise change and uncertainty

Autism Plus have seen distinct advantages to the homes changing from resident-al care to SSH* They don't need to worry
about the hassle and administration of maintaining the property and their tenants now have secured long-term tenure In their
accommodation,

. RESIDENT STORY - RACHEL® -

ra becorme mars independent: After inifiaiy iving in the -
: mmrmﬁ hcmmndatian she. mw&vmmkmwm
nm n%ﬂ;s WﬂWWﬂ hmses ‘ :

- gspm of bamng morg im;;em!sm ﬁeeheim m ahletﬂ )
"o weekly srmp;ﬁag wips whe;aetf mvﬁumeers ot mrsmg
Horrie and & lacal deap-in center, and she slea has @ paidjob
‘washing Up et a comenynity cale, She teally values the ataff

. memibars, some of whotn have worked with' h&r Torover 1 years.

*Not frerreal name.
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@ Over time Rachel has become more independent. After initially
living in the Residential Accommodation she has gradually
transitioned to cne of the Civitas-owned supported houses.

Autisn Piug

Civitas Social Housing PLC . .
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business model of the Company is to provide
long-term suitable homes for individuals with care
needs; acting in a sustainable manner is key to
achieving this aim. The property of the Company
is tailored tc meet the future needs of the tenants
and where required is actively asset managed to
provide long-term functionality and value to the
wider community,

Environment

During the investment due diligence phase the
Company iooks closely at the environmental impact
of each potential acquisition, and encourages
a sustainable approach for maintenance and
upgrading properties. Through partnering with
specialist developers and wvendors, the high
standards the Company expects from each
investment in the supported housing sector is
adopted by other companies in the sector.

Once within the portfolio, the properties of
the Company are actively asset managed,
with opportunities to improve envircnmental
efficiencies factoring heavily in addition to other
asset management initiatives.

The Board has considered the requirements to
disclose the annual guantity of emissions; further
detail on this is included in the Report of the
Directors.

Diversity

The Company does not have any employees or office
space, as such the Company does not operate a
diversity policy with regards to any administrative,
management and supervisory functions.

Whilst recognising the importance of diversity in
the boardroom, the Company does not consider it to
be in the interest of the Group and its shareholders
to set prescriptive diversity criteria or targets. The
Board will continue to monitor diversity, taking
such steps as it considers appropriate to maintain
its position as a meritocratic and diverse business.

The Board’s objective is to maintain effective
decision-making, including the impact of
succession planning. All Board appointments will
be made on merit and have regard to diversity
regarding factors such as gender, ethnicity,
skills, background and experience. See Corporate
Governance Statement on page 73.

The Board comprises three male and one female
non-executive Directors.

The beards of directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries each comprise up to four male and no
female directors.

Human Rights

The Company is not within the scope of the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 because it has not exceeded the
turnover threshold and is therefore not obliged to
make a slavery and human trafficking statement.

The Board is satisfied that, to the best of its
knowledge, the Company's principal advisers,
which are listed in the Company Information
section, comply with the provisions of the UK
Modern Slavery Act 2015.

The Company’s business is solely in the UK and
therefore is considered to be low risk with regards
to human rights abuses.

Community and Employees

The Company’s properties enable the provision
of care to some of the most vulnerable people
in the community, ensuring safe and secure
accommodation, tailored to meet individual care
needs. The Company has increased the provision of
Specialist Supported Housing, bringing new supply
to the sector and providing homes to over 4,000
people. All of the Company’s properties enable the
provision of high levels of care, generating local
jobs and helping to support local economies.

The Company has no employees and accordingly no
requirement to separately report on this area.

The Investment Adviser is an equal opportunities
employer who respects and seeks to empower each
individual and the diverse cultures, perspectives,
skills and experiences within its workforce.

Civitas Secial Housing PLC



Investment Objective and Policy

Market drivers

Business Model

1 2
An indmadual wath The Local Authonty
care requirermnents designs a care package,
requires a home dentifying a care
provider and property
for the individual.

Investment Objective

The Company’s investment objective is to provide
shareholders with an attractive level of income,
together with the potential for capital growth from
investing in a portfolio of social homes, which
benefits from inflation adjusted long-term leases
or occupancy agreements with Registered Providers
and to deliver, on a fully invested and geared basis,
a targeted dividend yield of 5% per annum, which
the Company expects to increase broadly in line
with inflation.

Investment Policy

The Company’s investment policy is to invest in
a diversified portfolio of social homes throughout
England and Wales. The Company intends to
meet the Company’s investment objective by
acquiring, typicaily indirectly via Special Purpose
Vehicles (“SPVs”), portfolios of social homes and
entering into long-term inflation adjusted leases
or occupancy agreements for terms primarily
ranging from 10 years to 40 years with Registered
Providers, where all management and maintenance
obligations will be serviced by the Registered
Providers. The Company will not undertake any
development activity or assume any development
or construction risk. However, the Company may
engage in renovating or customising existing
homes, as necessary.

The Company may make prudent use of leverage
to finance the acquisition of social homes and to
preserve capital on a real basis.

Civitas Social Housing PLC .

The care provider
15 paid full amount
for the care package
and pays rent to the
Housing Association

3b
The Housing
Association 1s paid
the rent directly

The Housing
Association pays
Civitas the rent

The Company is focused ondelivering capital growth
and expects to hold its Portfolio over the long term
and therefore it is unlikely that the Company will
dispose of any part of the Portfolio. In the unlikely
event that a part of the Portfolio is disposed of,
the Directors intend to reinvest proceeds from
such disposals in assets in accordance with the
Company’s investment policy.

Investment restrictions
The Company invests and manages the Portfolio
with the objective of delivering a high quality,
diversified Portfolio through the following
investment restrictions:

+ the Company only invests in social homes
located in England and Wales;

s the Company only invests in social homes
where the counterparty to the lease
or occupancy agreement is a Housing
Association or Local Authority;

+ no lease or occupancy agreement shall be
for an unexpired period of less than 10 years,
unless the shorter leases or occupancy
agreements represent part of an acquisition
of a portfolio which the Investment Adviser
intends to reorganise such that the average
term of lease or occupancy agreement is
increased to 15 years or above;
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the aggregate maximum exposure to any
single Local Authority or single Housing
Association is 25% of the Gross Asset Value,
once the capital of the Company is fully
invested;

no investment by the Company in any single
geographical area, in relation to which the
houses and/or apartment blocks owned by
the Company are located on a contiguous
or largely contiguous bhasis, exceeds 20% of
the Gross Asset Value of the Company on a
Portfolio NAV basis;

the Company only acquires completed
social homes and will not forward finance
any development of new social homes;

the Company does not invest in other
alternative investment funds or closed-end
investment companies; and

the Company is not engaged in short selling.

ol

The investment limits detailed above apply at the
time of the acquisition of the relevant investment
in the Portfolic once fully invested. The Company
would not be required to dispose of any investment
or to rebalance the Portfolio as a result of a change
in the respective valuations of its assets.

Gearing limit

The Directors seek to use gearing to enhance equity
returns. The level of borrowing is set on a prudent
basis for the asset class and seeks to achieve a low
cost of funds, whilst maintaining the flexibility
in the underlying security requirements and the
structure of both the Portfolio and the Company.

The Company may, followinga decision of the Board,
raise debt from banks and/or the capital markets
and the aggregate borrowings of the Company is
always subject to an absolute maximum, calculated
at the time of drawdown, of 40% of the Gross Asset
Value.

Civitas Social Housing PL.C
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Debt is secured at asset level, whether over a
particular property or a holding entity for a
particular series of properties, without recourse
to the Company and also potentially at Company
level with or without a charge over the Portfolio
(but not against particular assets), depending on
the optimal structure for the Company and having
consideration to key metrics including lender
diversity, cost of debt, debt type and maturity
profiles. Otherwise there will be no cross-financing
between investments in the Portfolio and the
Company will not operate as a common treasury
function between the Company and its investments.

Use of derivatives
The Company may choose to utilise derivatives for
efficient portfolio management. In particular, the

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs™)

Measure Explanation

Directors may engage in full or partial interest rate
hedging or otherwise seek to mitigate the risk of
interest rate increases on borrowings incurred in
accordance with the gearing limits as part of the
management of the Portfolio.

Cash management

Until the Company is fully invested, and pending
re-investment or distribution of cash receipts, the
Company invests in cash, cash equivalents, near
cash instruments and money market instruments.

REIT status

The Directors conduct the affairs of the Company
$0 as to enable it to remain qualified as a REIT for
the purposes of Part 12 of the CTA 2010 (and the
regulations made thereunder).

Result

Capital deployed
31 December 2018 cr earlier

Increase in IFRS and  Target to achieve capital appreciation whilst
rmaintaining a low nisk strategy from enhancing
share the quabty of cash flows from investments, by

Portfolio NAV per

Target of depioying the C share proceeds by

The C share proceeds were maternally deployed by
31 December 2018 Total of £754 8 million invested
to 31 March 2019, representing Ordinary and C share
equity and debt

IFRS NAV increase of @ 1p per share or 8 3% from IPO
Portfolio NAV increase of 21 1p per share or 215% from
PO

physical improvement of properties and by creating a

significantly diversified, high-quality portfoho.

Dividend per share

Number of Local

Authorities, Housing  {once fully invested) with no more than 25%
Associations and care exposure to any one Local Authonity or single
Housing Association and no more than 20%
exposure to any single geographical area, once the
capital of the Company 1s fully invested.

providers

Loan to Gross Assets  Target debt drawn of 356% of gross assets

Targeting bp per share per annum for the second
year growing broadly in line wath inflation.

Target nsk rutigation through a diversified portfolio As at 31 March 2019

Dividends of 5p per share declared for the calendar year
to 31 December 2018,

s 157 Local Authorities

. 15 Housing Associations

. 113 care providers

The Company's largest single exposure 1s to Faicon
Housing Association and currently stands at 21% The
largest geographical concentration 1s in the South West,
being 14 7%

Leverage as at 31 March 2018 of 22% of gross assets
with facilities in negobation to achieve the target in due
course.

Civitas Social Housing PLC .-
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Alternative Performance Measures

EPRA

The Company is a member of the European Public Real Estate Association (“EPRA”). EPRA has developed and
defined the following performance measures to give transparency, comparability and relevant of financial
reporting across entities which may use different accounting standards. The Company is pleased to disclose the
following measures which are calculated in accordance with EPRA guidance:

EPRA

Parformance 31 March 31 March

Measuie Debntion EPRA Porformance Measure 2019 zmsa

Earnings Earmings from operational activities EPRA Earnings £16,212,000 £6,293,000

EPRA Earrings per share (basic) 381p 180p
EPRA Earnings per share dituted) 3.63p 144p

EPRA NAY Net Asset Value adjusted to include properties EPRA Net Asset Value £666,508,000 £668,147000
and other investrnent interest at fair value EFRA NAV per share (diluted) 107.08p 106 54p
and to exclude certain tems not expected to
crystailise I 2 long-term investment property
business mode!

EPRA NNNAY EPRA NAV adjusted to include the farr values EPRA NNNAV £665,858,000 £667435,000
of 1) financial instruments, (0 debt and (uit EPRA NNNAV per share (diluted) 106.97p 105 43p
deferred taxes

EPRA Net Imiual Annualised rental income based on the cash EPRA Net Initial Yield 527% 527%

Yield rents passing at the balance sheet date, less
non-recoverable property operating expenrses,
diided by the market value of the property
with (estmated) purchasers’ costs

EPRA ‘Topped- This measure incorporates an adjustment to EPRA Topped-up’ Net Inial Yield 5.27% 527%

up’ NIY the EPRA NIY in respect of the expiration of
rent-free-periods (or other unexpired lease
incentives such as discounted rent penods and
stepped rents)

EPRAVacarcy Estimated Market Rental Value {"ERV") of EPRA Vacancy Rate 0% 0%

Rate vacancy space divided by ERV of the whele
portfolic

EPRA Costs Admiristrative & operating costs (including & EPRA Costs Ratio 26.95% 4780%

Ratio excluding costs of direct vacancy) dvided by ~ EPRA Costs Ratic {excluding direct 26.98% 4780%

gross rertal income vacancy costs)

For detailed workings reconciling the above measures to the IFRS results please see Appendix 1 to these
financial statements on pages 147 and 148.

Adjusted

Performance 31 March 31 March

Maodsure Deafnion Parformance Measure 20718 2018

Portfolio NAY  IFRS NAV adjustea to reflect investment Portfolio NAV £741,170,000 £398,605,000
property valued or a portfolio basis rather Portfolio NAV per share 119.07p 13 86p
than on ar individual asset basis

Company Company Specific Earnings Measure which Adjusted Earnings £22,612,000 £9,085,000

Adjusted adds back the finance costs associated with Adjusted Earnings per share 3.63p 2 60p

Earnings the C share financial Labihty

For detailed workings reconciling the Portfolio NAV to the IFRS results please see note 16 to these financial
statements. For detailed workings reconciling the Company Adjusted Earnings to the IFRS results please see
Appendix 1 to these financial statements on pages 147 and 148.

Civitas Soaal Housmg PLC



Principal Risks and Risk Management

The Board considers that the risks detailed below are the principal risks facing the Group currently, along with
the risks detailed in note 33 to the financial statements. These are the risks that could affect the ability of the
Company to deliver its strategy. The Board confirms that the principal risks of the Company, including those
which would threaten its future performance, solvency or liquidity, have been robustly assessed throughout
the year ended 31 March 2019, and that processes are in place to continue this assessment. Further detail of
risk management processes that are in place can be found in the Corporate Governance Statement on pages
74 and 75. The principal risks and uncertainties relating to the Group are regularly reviewed by the Board
along with the internal controls and risk management processes that are used to mitigate these risks. The
principal risks and management of those risks are described below:

VERY HIGH
HIGH
5
MEDIUM
P>
=
=  Low
VERY LOW
VERY o /ERY
UNCIKELy  UNLIKELY  POSSIBLE LIKELY e

PROBABILITY

Principal risks and uncertainties

1. Strategy and

competitiveness risks impact How managed/mitigated
The Company and its operations Any change in the laws, regulations  The Company focuses on niche real IulEIHg
are subject to laws and regulations  and/or government policy affecting  estate sectors where 1t belteves the [RYee0 high
enacted by national and local the Company and its operations regulatory framewaork to be robust,
governments and government rmay have a maternal adverse effect
pohecy on the abiity of the Company 1o The Board cbtains regular updates

successfully pursue its investment
policy and meet its Investment
cbjective and on the value of the
Company and the shares

from professional advisers to -
monitor developments in regulation Probability:
and legislation Unlikely

2 Strategy and

competiiiveness risks impact How managed/mitigated
As a result of competition from The rate of capital deployment The Company has strong links with
other purchasers of social housing would drop, decreasing returns to vendors and a robust pipeline of future 811
properties the Company’s abibity shareholders acquisitions

1o deploy capital effectively within
a reasonable timeframe may be
restricted or the net inrhal yields
at which the Company can acquire
propertes may decline such that
target returns cannot be met.

The Board reqularly reviews the
pipeline of potential acquisibons
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3 lrvestent
managemaent risk

Impact

How managed/mitigated

Tenant defaulting under the terms
of a lease

Loss of rental income in the short
term

The portfolio 1s diversified to reduce
the 1mpact of default Extensive
diligence 15 undertaken on all
assets, which is reviewed and
challenged by the Board

The Board i1s provided with reguiar
updates on the tenants with any
concerns raised for discussion

4 Investment
management risk

tmpdct

How managedrmiligated

The value of the investments made
by the Company may change from
time to ume according to a vanety
of factors, inciuding movements in
interest rates and in inflation and
general market pricing of similar
investments

The valuation of the Company’s
assets would fall decreasing the Net
Asset Value of the Company

The Company invests in projects
with stable predetermined,
long-term leases in place with CPI
or CPl plus 1% indexation and 1ts
strategy I1s not focused on sale of
properties

The Board recewves requiar updates
on factors that might impact
investment valuations

5 kwestment
management risk

impact

How manayed mitigated

Due diligence may not reveal all
facts and circumstances that may
be relevant in connection with an
investment and may not prevent
an acquisition being matenally
overvalued or rental streams being
at nisk

The Company would over pay

for assets impainng shareholder
value, reducing rental inceme and
therefore returrs

The Company undertakes detaled
due dilgence on the properties,
ther condimen, the proposed rental
levels — benchmarking against
comparabie schernes using both
external consultants where required |
and its own proprietary database
- and on the Registered Providers
and care providers involved in
each property to ensure that the
purchase price )s robust

The Board considers the due
diligence undertaken when
approving acquisitions

& investment
management risk

fmpact

How managed/mitinated

Loss of key staff at the investment
Adviser

Negative investor sentument leading
1o a reduction in share pnce
Beduction in abiiity to source off
rmarket and favourable deats

The Board considers the risk of
the nvestment Adviser losing key
staff and the succession plans the
Investment Adviser has in place

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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7 investmant
management risks

Impact

How managed/mithgated

Failure to monitor that contingent
activities are compieted by the RPs
or other parties.

Detericration in the underlying
quality, and therefore vaiue of the
Company's property

Contingent actions are regularly
monitored and followed up

The Board 1s kept appraised of any
breach of lease pbligations

8 Investment
management rnsks

impact

How managed mitigated

Lack of avalabihty for debt financing
or other capital

The rate of capital deployment
would drop decreasing returns to
sharehoiders

The Company has strong hinks with
a number of banks and other capital
s0urces.

The Board closely considers
any new loan facility proposed
and receives regular updates
on debt and capital markets for
consideration

Probabillity:
Unlikely

9 Accountng, tegal
and regulatory rnisks

Impact

How managed/mitigated

If the Company fails to remamn
qualified as a REIT, its rental income
and gains will be subject to UK
corporation tax.

Any change in the tax status of the
Company or any of its underlying
investments or in 1ax legislation

or practice (including 1n relation

to taxation rates and allowances)
or in accounting standards could
adversely affect the investment
return of the Company

The Cormpany has been structured
to be REIT compliant and

continuousty monitars the tax status §
using professional taxation advisers,

The Board has ultimate responsibility Prébl‘bilitv:
for ensuring adherence to the UK : :
REIT regime and monttors the
comphance reports provided by the
Investment Adwviser and other third
party providers.

i Vm_—y' unlikely

10 Operational risks,
including cyber crime

Impact

How managed/mitigated

Disruption to, or failure of the
systems or general operations of
third party providers could prevent
accurate reporting and manitoring
of the Company's financial position.
This includes the risk of cyber crime
and potential threat to secunty,
business continuity and reputation

Loss of operational capabilities,
potential regulator actions

Alternative service providers would
need to be identified and activities
transferred

The Board monitors the services
provided by the Investment Adviser
and other service providers and the
key elerments which are designed
1o provide effective internal control.
All service providers are required to
have robust IT security and disaster
recovery conungency plans in

place
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Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The Board regularly reviews the position of
the Company and its ability to continue as a
going concern in Board meetings. The financial
statements set out the current financial position of
the Company.

The Company acquires high-quality property
with a particular focus on property providing care
for the long term. The properties acquired are on
long-term full repairing and insuring leases in a
sector of the market with very high levels of need.
The cost base of the Company is proportionately
low compared to revenue and there is a high level
of certainty over cost to be incurred. On this basis
the Company is expected to be viable well beyond
the five year terms considered in the Company’s
testing below.

The cash balance of the Company at the period end
was £47 million that was readily available for use. As
stated inthe Strategic Report, the Investment Adviser
has identified a pipeline of £210 million of attractive
investment opportunities for acquisition over the
next twelve months. The Board has evaluated the
financial position of the Company and is confident in
the ability to raise debt and/or equity capital in order
to fund the Company’s investments for the next 12
months and to facilitate the payment of dividends to
shareholders at the targeted rate. Based on this, the
Board believes that the Company is in a position to
manage its financial risks.

The Directors believe that there are currently no
material uncertainties in relation to the Company’s
ability to continue in operation for a period of at
least 12 months from the date of approval of the
Company’s financial statements and therefore have
adopted the going concern basis in the preparation
of the financial statements.

Viability Statement

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code (2016) (“Code™), the Directors present the
Company’s viability statement which summarises
the results of their assessment of the Company’s
current position, its principal risks and prospects
over a period to 31 March 2024. The prospects were
assessed over a five year period, acknowledging that
the Company will have its first continuation vote in
2022, for the following reasons:

Civitas Social Housing PLC [

iy the Companys long-term forecast
covers a five year period;

iiy the length of service level agreements
between Housing Associations and care
providers is typically five years; and

iiiy the Company’s leases are typically 25
years on fully repairing and insuring
leases enabling reasonable certainty of
income over the next five years.

The Company’s five year forecast incorporates
assumptions related to the Company’s investment
strategy and principal risks from which performance
results, cash flows and key performance indicators
are forecast. The principal risks are set gut on pages
52 to 54. Of these risks, those which are expected to
have a higher impact on the Company’s longer-term
prospects are those related to future government
housing policies. The Company has considered
its strategy over a longer term and, in light of the
inherent demand for the Company’s properties and
the vulnerable nature of the ultimate tenant, the
risk of change in future housing policy is considered
to be limited. The principal risks are mitigated
by the Company’s risk management and internal
control processes which function on an ongoing
basis. The Board, via delegation to the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, monitors the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control processes on an ongoing basis.
The monitoring activities are described in the
Report of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee on page 68 and include direct review
and challenge of the Company’s documented risks,
risk ratings and controls and review of performance
and compliance reports prepared by the Company’s
advisers and the independent external auditors.

In accordance with the Code, the Board of Directors
has carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Company, including those
that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency and liquidity.

Where appropriate, the Company’s forecasts are
subject to sensitivity analysis which involves
applying severe conditions and flexing a number
of assumptions simultaneously. The sensitivities
performed were designed to provide the Directors
with an understanding of the Company’s
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performance in the event of severe but plausible
scenarios, taking full account of mitigating actions
that could be taken to avoid or reduce the impact or
occurrence of the underlying risks outlined below:

« Reduction in availability of suitable assets
for acquisition

« Tenant defaulting under a lease

+ Lack of availability for debt financing or
other capital

» Deterioration in economic outlook, such
as any negative impact due to Brexit, or
change in government housing policy which
could impact the fundamentals of the social
housing sector, including a negative impact
on valuations and rental uplifts.

The remaining principal risks and uncertainties,
whilst having an impact on the Company’s business,
are not considered by the Directors to have a

reasonable likelihood of impacting the Company’s
viability over the five year period, therefore the
scenarios outlined above are the only ones that
have heen specifically tested.

Based on the results of their assessment, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company will be able to continue in operation and
meet its liabilities as they fall due over the five year
period of their assessment.

Approval of Strategic Report
The Group Strategic Report was approved by the
Board and signed on its behalf by:

Michael Wrobel
Chairman
21 June 2019
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Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the date of signing the financial

statements were:

Michael Wrobel
(Chairman)

Michael has over 40 years’ experience in the
investment industry. He is the non-executive
Chairman of The Diverse Income Trust plc. He
serves as a trustee director of the BAT UK Pension
Fund and Chair of the Deutsche Bank UK Pension
Schemes, a trustee of the Cooper Gay (Holdings)
Ltd Retirement Benefits Scheme and acts as an
investment adviser to a number of Rio Tinto pension
schemes. Formerly, Michael was a portfolio manager
at Morgan Grenfell and Fidelity International.
He was then responsible for Fidelity’s European
Institutional business and later, Gartmore’s retail
business. He also worked at F&C Management. He
was a non-executive director of JPMorgan European
Smaller Companies Trust plc and NatWest Smaller
Companies plc. He has served as a director of
the Association of Investment Companies, the
Investment Management Association and CoFunds.
Michael has an MA in Economics from Cambridge
University.

Michael was appointed to the Board on 24 Qctober
2016 and has served as Chairman since his
appointment,
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Caroline Gulliver
(Director)

Caroline is a chartered accountant with over
25 vyears’ experience at Ernst & Young LLP,
latterly as an executive director. During that
time before leaving in 2012, she specialised in
the asset management sector and developed
extensive experience of investment trusts. She was
a member of various technical committees of the
Association of Investment Companies. She is also a
non-executive director and audit committee chair
for |P Morgan Global Emerging Markets Income
Trust plc, International Biotechnology Trust
plc and Aberdeen Standard European Logistics
Income PLC.

Caroline was appointed to the Board on 24 October
2016 and has served as Audit and Management
Engagement Committee Chairman since her
appointment,
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Peter Baxter
{Director)

Peter has 30 years’ of experience in the investment
management industry. He is a managing
director of Project Snowball LLP, a social impact
investment organisation, and a trustee of Trust
for London, a charitable foundation. He is also a
non-executive director of BlackRock Greater
European Investment Trust plc. Previously he
served as Chief Executive of Old Mutual Asset
Managers (UK) Ltd, and has worked for Schroders
and Hill Samuel in a variety of investment roles.
He holds an MBA from London Business School
and is an associate of the Society of Investment
Professionals.

Peter was appointed to the Board on
24 QOctober 2016 and is the Senior Independent
Director.

Alastair Moss
(Director)

Alastair is a property development lawyer with over
20 years’ experience and is Co-Head of Real Estate
at Memery Crystal LLP. He has been a non-executive
director of Notting Hill Genesis Trust and formerly a
member of the Audit and Treasury Committees. He
is a former Chairman of the Investment Committee
of the City of London Corporation and chaired
its Property Investment Board. He is currently
Chair of the City's Planning and Transportation
Committee and, as such, is the political lead for
all built environment and transport matters in
the Square Mile. He is a Trustee of Marshall’s
Charity. He has also been a board member of Soho
Housing Association and was a member of the Area
Board of CityWest Homes. He was a Councillor at
Westminster City Council for 12 vyears, including
his tenure as Chairman of the Planning & City
Development Committee.

Alastair was appointed to the Board on
24 October 2016.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019,

Principal Activities

The Company is a closed-ended investment
company and is a REIT which was incorporated
in England and Wales on 29 September 2016. The
Company is the holding company of a number of
subsidiaries and its Ordinary shares were admitted
to trading on the Main Market of the London Stock
Exchange on 18 November 2016. The Company
invests in properties or property holding SPVs,
either directly or via a wholly-owned subsidiary,
in accordance with the Company’s investment
objective and policy.

Business Review

A review of the business and future developments
is contained in the Chairman’s Statement and
Investment Adviser’s Report. The principal risks
and uncertainties are detailed on pages 52 to 54.
See note 35 for a summary of the post balance sheet
events.

Results and Dividends
The results for the year are shown on page 98.

The following dividends were paid on the Ordinary
shares during the year:

First dividend on 125p pad on

the Ordinary shares 8 June 2018
Second dividend on 125p pad on

the Ordinary shares 7 September 2018
Thirct dividdend an 125p paid on

the Ordinary shares 30 November 2018
Fourth dividend on 1.11p pad on

the Ordinary shares 11 January 2018
Fifth dividend on 0.14p paid on

the Ordinary shares

28 February 2019

The following dividends were paid on the C shares

during the year:

First dividend on 113p pad on

the C shares 8 June 2018
Second dividend on 0.75p paid on

the C shares 7 September 2018
Third dividend on 0.75p paid on

the C shares 30 November 2018
fourth dividend on 0 67p pad on

the C shares

11 January 2019
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Since the year end, the Company has declared the
following dividend:

Quarterly dividend on 1325p paid on
the Ordinary shales 7 June 2019

No final dividend is being recommended on the
Ordinary shares.

Directors

The members of the Board are listed on pages
60 and 61. They all served throughout the period
under review,

The Board consists solely of non-executive
Directors, each of whom is independent of the
Investment Adviser and the Company itself. The
Company has no executive directors or employees.

In accordance with Board policy, all Directors will
retire and, being eligible, will stand for re-election
at the AGM,

Performance evaluation of the Board, its Committees
and individual Directors is carried out in accordance
with the procedure set out on page 73.

No Director is under a contract of service with
the Company and no Director or any persons
connected with them had a material interest in the
transactions and arrangements of the Company.
Details of Directors’ remuneration are described
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages
78 to 82.

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the
securities of the Company are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Through their Letters of Appointment, the
Company has provided indemnities to the
Directors, to the extent permitted by law and the
Company’s Articles, in respect of liabilities which
may arise in connection with claims relating
to their performance or the performance of the
Company whilst they are Directors. There are no
other qualifying third party indemnities in force.

The general powers of the Directors are contained
within the relevant UK legislation and the
Company’s Articles of Association. The Directors
are entitled to exercise all powers of the Company,
subject to any limitations imposed by the Articles




of Association or applicable legislation. As set
out on page 84, the Articles of Association may
only be amended by way of a special resolution of
shareholders.

Capital Structure

Changes to share capital

On 21 December 2018, the 302,000,000 C shares in
issue were converted into Ordinary shares at the
ratio of 0.902190 new QOrdinary shares for every C
share. As a result, 272,461,380 new Ordinary shares
were issued.

Following the conversion, and as at 31 March 2019,
the Company had 622,461,380 Ordinary shares in
issue, none of which were held in treasury,

Shareholder authorities to issue or buy back
shares

At the AGM held on 2 August 2018, the Directors
were autharised ta issue equity securities up to an
aggregate nominal amount of a) £350,000 (being
approximately 10% of the issued Ordinary share
capital) and b) on and from the C Share Conversion
Date, £652,000 (or such lesser amount that would
be equal to 10% of the then nominal capital of
the aggregate Ordinary shares in issue following
conversion of the C shares into Ordinary shares.

The Company was also authorised to disapply
pre-emption rights in respect of equity securities
and to issue equity securities for cash up to an
aggregate nominal amount equal to:

1} until the C share conversion date), £350,000
{being approximately 10% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company at
the date of this Notice); and

i) on and from the C share conversion date,
£652,000 (or such lesser amount that would
be equal to 10% of the then nominal capital
of the aggregate Ordinary shares in issue
following the conversion of C shares into
Ordinary shares).

No Ordinary shares have been issued under these
authorities. Ordinary shares would be issued at
a price of not less than the Net Asset Value per
existing Ordinary share at the time of issue.

At the AGM held on 2 August 2018, the Company
was authorised to buy back shares as follows:
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i} up until the C Share Conversion Date,
52,465,000 Ordinary Shares (approximately
14.99% of the Company’s issued Ordinary
Share capital as at 29 June 2018);

iiy on and from the C Share Conversion
Date, 97,734,800 Ordinary (approximately
14.99% of the anticipated Company's
issued Ordinary Share capital immediately
following the conversion of C Shares
into Ordinary Shares as at the C Share
Conversion Date); and

iiiy 45,269,800 C Shares (approximately 14.99%
of the Company’'s C Shares as at 29 June
2018).

No shares have been bought back under these
authorities.

The Directors will consider repurchasing Ordinary
shares and/or C shares (when in issue) in the market
if they believe it to be in shareholders’ interests as
awhole and as a means of correcting any imbalance
between supply of and demand for the Company’s
shares.

The authorities to issue and buyback shares will all
expire at the 2019 AGM, at which renewal will be
sought.

Shareholder Rights

Ordinary shares

Each Ordinary shareholder is entitled to one vote on
a show of hands and, on a poll, to one vote for every
Ordinary share held. The right to attend and vote at
general meetings of the Company may be restricted
where ashareholder has failed to provide information
pursuant to a notice served under section 793 of the
Companies Act 2006. The Ordinary shares carry the
right to receive dividends declared by the Company
from the Ordinary share pool.

Provided the Company has satisfied all of its
liabilities and subject to the rights conferred by
any C shares in issue at that time to participate in
the winding-up, the holders of Ordinary shares are
entitled to all of the surplus assets of the Company.

C shares (when in issue)

The C shares are a class of convertible, non-voting
preference share listed from time to time on the
standard segment of the Official List and admitted
to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Main
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Report Of the Dil‘ectors continued

Market. The restriction on voting is required in
order to protect the Company’s status as a REIT,
but, when in issue, C shareholders will be able to
vote in relation to matters that affect the rights of
C shares.

The C shares have the right to participate in a
fixed, cumulative preferential dividend payable
out of the C share Pool of 3% per annum (based on
a C share price of 100 pence), pro-rated up to the
Calculation Date for the Conversion of the C shares
into Ordinary shares. The Company is not entitled
to reduce or forgo or waive the payment of these
fixed rate dividends. The C shares will convert into
Ordinary shares following the earlier of (i) 90%
of the net issue proceeds have been invested or
committed and (ii) 14 November 2018. The Ordinary
shares arising on conversion of the C shares will
rank pari passu with the Ordinary shares then in
issue for any dividends or distributions declared,
made or paid on the Ordinary shares by reference
to a record date falling after the Conversion Date.

The C shares do not carry a right to participate
in dividends declared by the Company out of the
Ordinary share Pool or income in excess of the fixed
dividend out of the C share pool.

On a winding-up of the Company, whilst there are
C shares remaining in issue, the net assets and
liabilities of the Company attributable to the C
shares shall be divided amongst the holders of the
C shares pro rata to their respective holdings of C
shares (up to a maximum of the amount subscribed
for the C shares).

Transfers of shares

There is no restriction on the transfer of the
Company’s shares other than transfers to more
than four joint transferees and transfers of shares
which are not fully paid up or where the transferor
or any other person whom the Company reascnably
believes to be interested in the transferor’s shares
has been duly served with a notice pursuant to
section 793 of the Companies Act 2006.

There are no special rights with regard to control
attached to securities; and no agreements between
holders of securities regarding their transfer known
to the Company.

Civitas Social Housing PLC .

Manageinent Arrangements

Investment Adviser

The Board has appointed the Investment Adviser,
Civitas Housing Advisors Limited (“CHA"), to provide
investment advice and to manage the property
portfolio and the associated day to day activities,
including management of tenanted properties and
marketing activities. CHA is a specialist investor in
social housing property, with a focus on specialist
social housing and has extensive experience in social
housing and real estate investment.

The duties of CHA include the sourcing of investment
opportunities that meet the investment criteria of
the Company, controlling the acquisition of approved
properties, management of all properties within the
portfolio, ongoing monitoring of the properties and
tenants, maintaining compliance with all relevant
rules and regulations, and providing marketing and
investor relations services to the Company.

Details of the fees payable to the Investment Adviser
are described in note 8 of the financial statements.
With effect from 26 April 2019, the basis for the
calculation of the Investment Adviser’s fees was
changed from Portfolio NAV to TFRS NAV,

The agreement with CHA is terminable on not less
than 12 months’ notice by either party, such naotice
not to expire earlier than 30 November 2021. On
26 April 2019, the earliest expiry date was extended
to 30 May 2024.

The performance of the Investment Adviser has
been reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the
period by the Board at its quarterly meetings. A
formal annual evaluation is also carried out by the
Audit and Management Engagement Committee.
The Board considers a number of factors including
investment performance, the quality and quantity
of investment opportunities presented, the skills
and experience of key staff and the capability and
resources of the Investment Adviser to deliver
satisfactory performance for the Company. The
Board is satisfied with the performance of the
Investment Adviser and considers its continued
appointment to be in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.
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AIFM

G10 Capital Limited (“G10” or the “Investment
Manager”) has been appointed as the Company’s
AIFM. The AIFM performs certain risk management
functions for the Company and oversees the
portfolio management functions exercised by
CHA. G10 is part of the Luxembourg-based IQEQ
Group, which provides professional services to
the finance industry. The AIFM receives an annual
management fee of 0.03% of the total Company NAV
for its services, subject to a minimum of £96,000 per
annum and the agreement is terminable on three
months’ notice by either party.

Depositary

Indos Financial Limited were appointed as the
Company’s Depositary with effect from 1 June
2018. The Depositary provides cash monitering,
safekeeping and asset venfication and oversight
functions as prescribed by the AIFMD. The
Depositary receives an annual fee of £59,000,
plus 0.006% of the first £350 million of any new

equity capital raised and 0.003% of further equity
thereafter, subject to a maximum of £150,000 and
the agreement is terminable on six months’ notice
by either party.

Administrator

The Company has appointed Link Alternative
Fund Adminisiration Limited (“Link™ as the
Administrator of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to undertake the accountancy and other
administrative duties of the Company. Link is a
specialist administrator for investment funds,
providing support functions and expertise tailored
for this industry.

The Administrator receives a fixed base fee for the
provision of its services to the Company as well as
an entitlement to additionatl variable fees for duties
relating to corporate activities. This agreement
was put in place effective from 1 March 2018. The
agreement is terminable on 90 days’ notice by either

party.

Cwvitas Sogial Housing PLC



Report of the Directors .oninued

The duties of the Administrator include the
maintenance of all Company and subsidiary books
and records, excluding those maintained by the
Investment Adviser, monitoring compliance with
applicable relevant rules and regulations and other
administrative duties as required.

Secretary

Link Company Matters Limited were appointed
as Secretary to the Company with effect from
28 March 2018. The Secretary receives a fixed fee
for the provision of its services to the Company. The
agreement is for an initial period of one year and
thereafter will automatically renew for successive
periods of 12 months, unless terminated by either
party on at least six months’ notice.

Review of service providers

The performance of the service providers is
reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the
period by the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee. The Committee considers a number of
factors including performance of duties, the skills
and experience of key staff, and the capability
and resources of the service provider to deliver
satisfactory performance for the Company. The
Board is satisfied with the performance of the
service providers appointed by the Company and
considers their continued appointment to be in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Substantial Shareholdings

At 31 March 2019 the Company had been informed
of the following disclosable interests in the share
capital of the Company:

Numberof Percentage of

Ordinary Total Voting
shares Rights
Investec Wealth
& Investment 52,203.795 999
East Riding of Yorkshire
Council 38,043,800 811

On 9 May 2019, Investec Wealth & Investment
advised that their holding had increased to
62,252,177 shares, 10.00% of total voting rights.

On 16 May 2019, Investec Wealth & Investment
advised that their holding had decreased to
62,205,728 shates, 9.99% of total voting rights.

No other changes have been notified between
31 March 2019 and the date of this report.
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On 28 May 2019, Investec Wealth & Investment
advised that their holding had increased to
62,393,335 shares, 10.02% of total voting rights.

Continuation Vote

The Company has an unlimited life. However,
in accordance with its Articles, the Board will
propose an ordinary resolution for the Company
to continue in its current form to shareholders at
the annual general meeting to be held in 2022,
and at the annual general meeting held every five
years thereafter. If the resolution is not passed,
the Directors intend to formulate proposals to
be put to shareholders within six months of such
resolution being defeated for the reorganisation or
reconstruction of the Company.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The listing rule 9.8.4 outlines a series of
requirements for listed companies to disclose
certain items. The Directors confirm that there are
no disclosures required in relation to Listing Rule
9.8.4.

Financial Instruments

The Company utilises financial instruments in
its operations. The financial instruments of the
Company at 31 March 2019 comprised trade
receivables and payables, other debtors, cash and
cash equivalents, non-current botrowings and
current borrowings.

Other than its fixed interest rate debt facilities, it is
the Directors’ opinion that the carrying value of all
financial instruments on the statement of financial
position is equal to their fair value.

No financial instruments of the Company were
hedged during the period ended 31 March 2019. For
a more detailed analysis of the Company’s financial
risk management please refer to note 33 of the
financial statements.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Board has considered the requirements to
disclose the annual quantity of emissions in
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent for activities
for which the Company is responsible. The Board
has considered the requirement and believes that
the Company has no reportable emissions for the
period ended 31 March 2019, and therefore has
not included the information or methodologies for
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the calculation of emissions. The Company has no
reportable emissions as the Company’s properties
were the lessees’ responsibility under the terms of
their fully repairing and insuring leases, rather than
that of the Company; emissions produced from
either the registered office of the Company or from
the offices of other service providers are deemed to
fall under the responsibility of other parties; and
the Company has not leased or owned any vehicles
which fall inside the scope of the GHG Protocol
Corporate Standard.

Charitable Donations

In addition to its direct investments, the Company
plays a broader part within the communities in
which it works. Whilst recognising the practical
limitations that all financial investors face, Civitas
supports voluntary organisations that are active
within the broader housing and homelessness
environment. Civitas also intends, as part of its
broader financial and operational reporting, to
provide a commentary on the positive social change
and impact that results from the investments that
have been made.

The following charitable donations were made
during the vear.

» The Company is continuing its partnership
with the national homelessness charity,
Crisis, for a third year, and has committed
to a contribution of £40,000 to support its
“Renting Ready” programme across the UK
in 2019.

« A donation of £15,000 was made to the
Choir with No Name to support the Choir
with No Name across various locations. The
Choir with No Name works with homeless
and disadvantaged people and was founded
on the premise that singing and taking part
in group activities helps to build skills and
confidence for the future. From an initial
cheir in North London in 2008, the Choir
with No Name has expanded to Birmingham,
South London and Liverpool.

+  £5,000 was donated to QPOKA, a charity
aimed at helping woman that have been the
victims of domestic abuse.

» As part of the continuing efforts to
build and contribute to partnerships
with organisations that share Civitas’s

objectives, a donation of £5,000 was made
to the House of St Barnabas, the first not-
for-profit members’ club run to support
people affected by homelessness.

+ A donation of £3,000 was made to sponsor
Women in Social Housing, a membership-
based network for women who worked
across the UK social housing market.

Auditor
So far as each of the Directors is aware at the time
this report is approved:

« there is no relevant audit infermation of
which the Company’s auditor is not aware;
and

+ the Directors have taken all steps they
ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the auditor is aware of that
information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has expressed its
willingness to continue to act as auditor of the
Company and a resolution for their re-appointment
will be proposed at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting.

Approval
The Report of the Directors has been approved by
the Board.

By order of the Board

Link Company Matters Limited
Secretary
21 June 2019
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Introduction

The Audit and Management Engagement
Committee (the “Audit Committee”} oversees the
financial reporting process for the Company, with
consideration of the internal controls and risk
management of the Company, and oversight of the
Company’s compliance with accounting standards
and reguiatory requirements.

Composition

The Audit Committee is chaired by Caroline Gulliver,
The other members of the Audit Committee are
Michael Wrobel, Alastair Moss and Peter Baxter.,
The Audit Committee operates within written
terms of reference as determined by the Board.
The Board considers that at least one member has
recent and relevant financial experience and that
the Committee as a whole has competence relevant
to the sector in which the Company operates.

Meetings

The Audit Committee meets twice a year; on both
occasions part of the meeting will be held with the
external auditor without the Investment Adviser
present,

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee:
The principal functions of the Audit Committee are
to:

« oversee the financial reporting process for
the Company and monitor the integrity of
the financial statements of the Company,
including the Company’s compiiance
with accounting standards and regulatory
requirements;
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* review and monitor the internal financial
control and risk management systems of the
Company;

* monitor and review annually whether an
internal audit function is required;

+  review the Investment Adviser’s

whistleblowing arrangements;

= approve the appeintment, re-appointment
or removal of the external auditor and
approve their remuneration;

+ manage the relationship between the
Company and the external auditor, including
reviewing their independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process;

« develop and implement a policy on the
engagement of the external auditor to supply
non audit services; and

« review and monitor the performance of,
and contractual arrangements with, the
Investment Adviser, the AIFM and other
service providers.

It is within the Audit Committee’s terms of reference
for its members to seek independent professional
advice, at the Company’s expense, as required in
the furtherance of its duties.

During the period, the Audit Committee carried out
its duties as specified in the terms of reference, as
follows:

» discussed and agreed the scope of the audit
and the audit plan with the external auditor;

« agreed the remuneration of the external
auditor;

» reviewed the half year and annual financial
statements and discussed the results of the
audit with the external auditor;

+» reviewed the internal controls of the
Company and the Risk Matrix, which
is reviewed by the Committee on a six-
monthlybasis and carried out an assessment
of the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;
the Committee has not identified nor been
advised of any failings or weaknesses which
it has determined to be significant.



« reviewed the performance of the Investment
Adviser, the AIFM and other key service
providers and made a recommendation
to the Board about their continuing
engagement; and

+ during the period the Directors
monitored the Company’s whistleblowing
arrangements. No incidents were raised
during the period.

Performance Evaluation
The process for the evaluation of the performance of
the Committee is disclosed on page 73.

Significant Financial Reporting Issue -
Valuation of Investment Property

After discussion with the Investment Adviser, the
Audit Committee has determined that the key risks of
misstatement of the Company financial statements
relate to the valuation of investment property.

This issue was discussed with the Investment
Adviser during the period. It was also discussed with
the external auditor at the time the Audit Committee
reviewed and agreed the external auditor’s company
audit plan, when the external auditor reviewed the
half year interim financial statements and also at
both the planning stage and conclusion of the annual
audit of the financial statements.

As further explained in note 15 to the financial
statements, the approach adopted by the Company
is to recognise investment property at fair value,
with the fair value of the property being based on
valuations performed by independent valuers, Jones
Lang LaSalle Limited. The revaluation of investment
property gave rise to net revaluation gains of
£3.7 million in the period.

The Investment Adviser confirmed to the Audit
Committee that the method of valuation has been
applied consistently throughout the year and none
of the Audit Committee’s enquiries, nor the auditor’s
work, identified any errors or inconsistencies
that were material in the context of the financial
statements as a whole.

The Investment Adviser also informed the Audit
Committee that during the course of the period
the external valuer was regularly challenged by
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the Investment Adviser on the assumptions used
in the valuation of the Company’s portfolio, to
ensure robust and appropriate methods were being
applied. The Audit Committee discussed the areas of
challenge with the Investment Adviser to determine
that sufficient challenge had been made.

Misstatements

The Investment Adviser confirmed to the Audit
Committee that they were not aware of any material
orf immaterial misstatements made intentionally
to achieve a particular presentation. The external
auditor reported to the Audit Committee that they
had found no material misstatements in the course
of their work. The Audit Commitiee confirms
that it is satisfied that the auditor has fulfilled its
responsibilities with diligence and professional
scepticism.

Conclusion in respect of the Annual Report

and Financial Statements

Having reviewed the presentations and reports
frormn the Investment Adviser and having consulted
where necessary with the external auditor, the Audit
Committee is satisfied that the financial statements
appropriately address the critical judgements and
key estimates, both in respect of the amounts
reported and the disclosures. The Audit Committee
is also satisfied that the significant assumptions used
for determining the value of assets and liabifities
have been appropriately scrutinised and challenged
and are sufficiently robust. Accordingly, the Audit
Committee has concluded that the financial
statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable, and has recommended their
approval to the Board on that basis.

Auditor Appointment and Tenure
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was appointed as
auditor of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting held on 17 May 2017, and their audit of
these financial statements is the third audit they
have carried out since appeointment. Sandra Dowling
is the senior statutory auditor. [n accordance with
the CMA Order, a competitive tender must be
carried out at least every ten years. The Company
is therefore required to carry out a tender no
later than in respect of the financial year ending
31 March 2027.

Civntas Sccial Housing PLC



Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee conunucd

Assessment of the Effectiveness of the

External Audit Process

As part of its annual review of the effectiveness of
the external audit process, the Audit Committee
obtained assurance on the quality of the external
audit from its own evaluation, the audit feedback
documentation and from correspondence and
discussions with the audit partner and the
Investment Adviser and the Administrator. The
Audit Committee concluded that this was sufficient
information on which to conclude that the external
audit process is effective.

The Audit Committee assessed the external
auditor’s independence, qualifications, relevant
experience, and effectiveness of audit procedures,
In advance of each audit, the Audit Committee
obtains confirmation from the external auditor
that they remain independent and that the level of
non-audit fees are not an independence threat.

Non-audit Services

The Audit Committee has put into place a policy for
the provision of non-audit services to the Company
by the auditor. The general intention of the Audit
Committee is to avoid the provision of non-audit
services by the auditor, other than the review of
the half vearly report, as these have the potential
to compromise the independence of the auditor.
The Audit Committee acknowledges that in certain
situations it may be appropriate for the external
auditor to provide such services to the Company
for a variety of reasons including cost effectiveness,
depth of knowledge and the on~-going relationship
between the Board and the external auditor. All
non-audit fees are approved by the Audit
Committee in advance. Where non-audit fee levels
are considered significant, the Audit Committee
considers the appropriateness of the independence
safeguards put in place by the auditor.

The total fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
during the period, net of VAT, totalled £221,000
(2018: £563,000), of which £41,000 (2018: £290,000}
was received for non-audit services. The non-audit
service fees related to the review of the half yearly
report and the review of the C share conversion
calculation.
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Note 9 to the financial statements details
all services provided and total fees paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the financial
year ended 31 March 2019. The Audit Committee
considers PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to be
independent of the Company.

Re-appointment of the Auditor

Taking into account the performance and
effectiveness of the Auditor and the confirmation
of their independence, the Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board that a resolution to
reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the
Company’s auditor be put to the shareholders at
the next AGM.

CMA Order

Civitas Social Housing PLC has complied throughout
the year ended 31 March 2019 with the provisions
of the CMA Order.

Caroline Gulliver

Chairman, Audit and Management
Engagement Committee

21 June 2019
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Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The FCA Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules require listed companies
to disclose how they have applied the principles
and complied with the provisions of the corporate
governance code to which the issuer is subject. The
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
(“UK Code”), as issued by the Financial Reporting
Council (“FRC”) in April 2016, are applicable
to the vear under review and can be viewed at
www.fre.org.uk.

The Board has considered the principles and
recommendations of the AIC Code of Corporate
Governance (“AIC Code”) by reference to the
AIC Corporate Governance Guide for Investment
Companies (“AIC Guide”). The AIC Code, as
explained by the AIC Guide, addresses all the
principles set out in the UK Corporate Governance
Code, as well as setting out additional principles
and recommendations on issues that are of specific
relevance to the Company as an investment
company. The FRC has confirmed that AIC member
companies who report against the AIC Code and
who follow the AIC Guide will be meeting their
obligations in relation to the UK Code and the
associated disclosure requirements of the FCA. The
AIC Code can be viewed at www.theaic.co.uk.

The Board considers that reporting against the
principles and recommendations of the AIC
Code, and by reference to the AIC Guide (which
incorporates the UK Code), provides shareholders
with full details about the Company’'s corporate
governance compliance.

During February 2019, the AIC issued a revised Code
of Corporate Governance (“Revised AIC Code”). The
Company will be required to report against the
Revised AIC Code in next year’s Annual Report and
Accounts.

Statement of Compliance

Except as set out below and on the following pages,
the Company has complied with the provisions of
the AIC Code throughout the vear ended 31 March
2019.

The UK Code includes provisions relating to:
+ the role of the chief executive; and

+ executive directors’ remuneration.

The Board considers these provisions are not
relevant to the position of the Company, being
an externally managed investment company.
In particular, all of the Company’s day-to-day
management and administrative functions are
outsourced to third parties. As a result, the
Company has no executive Directors, employees
or internal operations. The Company has therefore
not reported further in respect of these provisions.

The Board

The Board is comprised of four non-executive
Directors. All the Directors are independent of
the Investment Adviser and the AIFM. They are
responsible for the strategy and oversight of the
Company. The Board has adopted a schedule
of matters reserved for decision by the Board,
including inter alia, determining the Company’s
Investment Objective and Policy and gearing and
dividend policies.

They ensure that risks are effectively managed
thraough robust policies and procedures, supported
by the right values and culture. The Board’s primary
focus is the sustainable long-term success of the
Group to deliver value for shareholders, taking into
account other stakeholders.

The Board is responsible for investment decisions,
other than to the extent delegated to the AIFM and/
or the Investment Adviser, and the appointment,
supervision and monitoring of the Company’s
service providers, including amongst others the
AIFM and the Investment Adviser. The Board is
responsible for the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company and, in conjunction
with the AIFM will also approve the periodic
calculation of the Net Asset Value.

The Chairman was independent of the Investment
Adviser at the time of his appointment and is
deemed by the remaining Directors to continue
to be independent and to have no conflicting
relationships, Mr Wrobel is an Independent
Investment Adviser to Rio Tinto plc. He considers
himself to have sufficient time to commit to the
Company’s affairs.

Peter Baxter has been appointed as the Senior
Independent Director. He provides a channel for
any shareholder concerns regarding the Chairman
and takes the lead in the annual evaluation of the
Chairman.

Civitas Socral Housing PLC
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The Board has no set policy for the length of tenure
of Directors and it is Board policy for all Directors
te stand for re-election annually. Recommendation
for re-election will be on an individual basis
following rigorous review. Directors are appointed
under letters of appointment, copies of which are
available for inspection at the registered office of
the Company and at the AGM.

How the Board Operates

The Board meets formally at least quarterly, but also
meets on an ad hoc basis, typically every month, for
the purpose of considering potential transactions
and associated due diligence. The Board will meet to
consider and if appropriate approve the acquisition
of properties recommended by the Investment
Adviser. The Board of Directors has final approval
for all acquisitions.

For the purpose of monitoring the portfolio, the
Board receives periodic reports from the AIFM and
the Investment Adviser, detailing the performance
of the Company. The Board delegates certain
responsibilities and functions to the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, which has
written terms of reference.

To assist the Board in the day-to-day operations
of the Company, arrangements have been put in
place to delegate authority for performing certain
of the day-to-day operations of the Company to the
AIFM, the Investment Adviser and other third-party
service providers, such as the Administrator and the
Company Secretary. The Board and the Investment
Adviser operate in a supportive, co-operative and
open environment.

The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance on behalf of the Directors at the
expense of the Company. The Company has also
indemnified the Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association.

Independence of Directors
The independence of all Directors is reviewed as
part of the annual assessment of the Board.

The Board has determined that each Director
remains independent of character and judgement
and is free of any relationships or circumstances
that threaten their independence of the Company
or its Investment Adviser. In particular, none of the
Directors have ever been executives of the Company
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or the Investment Adviser, have had a material direct
or indirect relationship with the Company or its
stakeholders, have received dispropertionate fees,
have close family relationships with stakeholders
or represent significant shareholders.

Board Meetings

A formal agenda is approved by the Chairman and
circulated by the Company Secretary in advance
of each meeting to the non-executive Directors
and other attendees. A typical agenda includes: an
analysis of portfolio performance and exposure; an
update on the investment pipeline; the Company’s
financial performance; updates on investor
relations; statutory and regulatory compliance; and
any corporate governance matters. Relevant papers
on the items included on the agenda are circulated
in good time to the members of the Board, in
advance of the meeting.

The Investment Adviser attends the Board meetings
together with representatives from the AIFM
and Company Secretary. Representatives of the
Company’s other advisers are also invited to attend
Board meetings from time to time.

The numbers of Board and Audit and Management
Engagement Committee meetings held during
the year ended 31 March 2019 along with the
attendance of the Directors were:

Board of Directors  Audit Committee

Entitled Entiied

to Attend Attended to Attend Attended
Michael Wrobel 13 13 2 2
Peter Baxter 13 13 2 2
Caraline Gulliver 13 13 2 2
Alastair Moss 13 12 2 2

Mr Moss was unable to attend one meeting that had
been called on less than 24 hours’ notice due to a
prior engagement,

Audit Committee

The Company operates through the Board and
its main Board committee, namely the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee (“Audit
Cominittee”). The Board evaluates the membership
of its Board committees on an annual basis. All
Directors are a member of the Audit Committee,
Caroline Gulliver, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, is a Chartered Accountant and is
considered to have recent and relevant financial
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experience. The Audit Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the real estate investment
company sector. The Chairman is a member of
the Audit Committee. but does not chair it. His
membership of the Audit Committee is considered
appropriate given the small size of the Board and
the Chairman’s knowledge of the financial services
industry. A copy of the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee is available from the Secretary.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year
and reviews the scope and results of the external
audit, its cost effectiveness and the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors, including
the provision of non-audit services.

The Audit Committee also reviews the terms of
the AIFM agreement and the Investment Adviser
Agreement, and examines the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control systems and the
performance of the AIFM, Investment Adviser,
Administrator, Depositary, Company Secretary and
Registrar, and other service providers.

The Report of the Audit Committee is set out on
pages 68 to 70,

Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Given the size of the Board and the nature of the
Company, it is not deemed necessary to form a
separate remuneration or nomination committee.
The Board as a whole will assess the remuneration
and composition of the Board and whether it has
the correct balance of skills, experience, knowledge
and independence to operate effectively.

The Board recognisesthebenefitsofdiversityandhas
adopted a diversity policy. All Board appointments
will be made on merit and have regard to diversityin
relation to factors such as gender, ethnicity, skills,
background and experience. The Board does not
consider it be in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders to set prescriptive diversity criteria
or targets, but will continue to monitor diversity
and take such steps as it considers appropriate to
maintain its position as a meritocratic and diverse
business. See also the Strategic Report on page 47.

A procedure for the induction of new Directors has
been established, including the provision of an
induction pack containing relevant information
about the Company, its processes and procedures
and meetings with the Chairman and relevant
persons at the Investment Adviser.

The Board undertakes an annual internal performance
evaluation by way of questionnaires designed to assess
the strengths and independence of the Board and the
Chairman, individual Directors and the performance
of the Board’s Committee. The areas considered are:

« The frequency and effectiveness of Board
and committee meetings;

+ The size, composition and relevant
experience of the Board;

» The independence and performance of the
Directors and the Board; and

« The training requirements of each Director.

The evaluation process is conducted by the
Chairman. Peter Baxter, as the Senior Independent
Director, leads the appraisal of the Chairman.

The Company seeks to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills and experience that are
complementary and enable the Board to operate
efficiently.

All of the Directors have assessed their other
ongoing commitments and are satisfied that they
can commit the time necessary to execute their
duties to the Company.

No significant issues were identified during the
evaluation process and it was agreed that all
Directors should be recommended for re-election
at the AGM.

The Company has begun a search to identify a fifth
Director, to add further depth to the Board and to
help with succession planning.

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors have a statutory responsibility to
avoid situations where a conflict of interest exists,
or may exist, between the Company and an entity
that the director is either directly or indirectly
involved with. The Board has procedures in place
to identify potential conflicts and resolve any that
should arise. In the case of a confiict of interest,
the nature and extent of the conflict are assessed
against the existing internal control structure, and
the results of this assessment and actions taken to
resolve the conflict are documented in the minutes
of the relevant Board meeting. No conflicts of
interest arose during the period.

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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Health and Safety

Health and safety is of prime importance to
the Company and is considered equally with all
other business management activities to ensure
protection of stakeholders, be they tenants,
advisers, suppliers, visitors or others. The Board
regularly discusses health and safety issues with
the Investment Adviser.

The Company is committed to fostering the highest
standards in health and safety as it believes that all
unsafe acts and unsafe conditions are preventable,
All our stakeholders have a responsibility to
support the aim of ensuring a secure and safe
environment, and all our stakeholders are tasked
with responsibility for achieving this commitment.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Directors are responsible for the systems
of internal contrel relating to the Company
and its subsidiaries, and the reliability of the
financial reporting process and for reviewing their
effectiveness, ensuring that the risk management
and contrel processes are embedded in day-to-day
operations.

The Audit Committee hasin place a formal procedure
for performing an ongoing robust assessment of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The procedures are designed to identify,
evaluate and monitor the principal and other risks
most likely to impact the Group. A Risk Matrix has
been established against which the risks identified
and the controls in place to mitigate those risks can
be monitored. The risks are assessed on the basis of
the likelihood of them happening, the impact on the
business if they were to occur and the effectiveness
of the controls in place to mitigate them.

In arriving at its judgement of what risks the
Company faces, the Board has considered the
Company’s operations in the light of the following
factors:

» the nature and extent of risks which it
regards as acceptable for the Company to
bear within its overall business objective;

« the threat of such risks becoming reality;

+ the Company’s ability to reduce the
incidence and impact of risk on its
performance; and
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+ the cost to the Company and benefits
refated to the Company and third parties
operating the relevant controls.

The risk matrix is reviewed twice a year by the Audit
Committee and at other times as necessary. The
principal risks facing the Company are set out on
pages 52 to 54 of this Annual Report, together with
the processes applied to mitigate those risks.

The Audit Committee is mindful of these key risks
as well as considering evolving risks such as cyber
security and political risk which have the potential
to affect the Group, The Audit Committee ensures
that the Board takes appropriate advice and debates
the issues facing the Group.

At each Board meeting, the Board receives reports
from the Investment Adviser, the Administrator,
the Compliance Officer and the Broker in respect
of compliance activities, Company financial
performance and financial position.

The Directors have reviewed and considered
the guidance supplied by the FRC on Risk
Management, Internal Control and Related
Financial and Business Reporting. The controls,
which are regularly reviewed, aim to ensure
that the assets of the Company are safeguarded,
proper accounting records are maintained, and the
financial information used within the business and
for publication is reliable. The risk management
process and Company systems of internal controls
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Company’s objectives
and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors have carried out a review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems as they have operated
over the period and up to the date of approval of
the Annual Report. During the course of the review,
the Board has not identified nor been advised of any
failings or weaknesses which it has determined to
be significant.

The Directors have considered the appropriateness
of establishing an internal audit function and,
having regard to the structure and nature of the
Cempany’s activities, has concluded that the
function is unnecessary. The Audit Committee will
review on an annual basis the need for this function
and make appropriate recommendations to the
Board.




Financial Reporting
The Board operates the following key controls in
relation to financial reporting:

+ The Board and Audit Committee members
review quarterly management reports and
supporting documents that are provided by
the Investment Adviser;

+ The Board has procedures in place for the
approval of expenses and payvments to third
parties; and

+ The Audit Committee members and Board
review all financial information and
announcements prior to publication.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responsibility
as integral to how it conducts its business. It
is committed to being a good corporate citizen
and behaving responsibly with a demonstrated
transparency of approach.

To achieve this goal, the Company applies the
following principles to its operations:

Business conduct

The Company’s investment decisions are made
on the basis of generating shareholder value and
ensuring the long-term success of the business. The
selection of suppliers will be made independently
by the Company’s Directors upon advice from the
Investment Adviser and in the best interests of the
Company. The Board will ensure that appropriate
controls are in place to guarantee independence
from the supply chain.

All customers and suppliers wiil be treated fairly
and responsibly.

The Company will not provide financial support to
political parties or politicians.

The Company is resolutely opposed to bribery and
corruption. The Company will not use any illegal or
improper means to further its business interests, nor
will it accept any forms of inducements intended to
influence its investment decisions.

Governance

The Company will protect the interests of its
shareholders and other stakeholders through
compliance with relevant legal and regulatory
environments, and through effective management
of business risk and opportunity.

>" ) )

The Board will ensure that its members are truly
independent, are competent and have the resources
and support tequired to perform their duties
optimally, and that the Board’s decisions are made in
the best interests of the Company. The performance
of the Board will be regularly reviewed, and Directors
will retire as and when deemed appropriate by the
Board in accordance with best practice.

Socially responsible investment

The Board aims to be a socially responsible investor
and believes that it is important to invest in
specialist social housing properties in a responsible
manner in respect of environmental, ethical and
social issues. The Investment Adviser's evaluation
procedure and analysis of the properties within the
portfolio includes research and appraisal of such
matters, and takes into account environmental and
social policies and other business issues.

Further details on the social impact of the
Company’s investments are included in the extract
from the Good Economy Impact Report in the
Strategic Report.

The Company recognises that environmental
protection, resource efficiency and sustainable
development are necessary to ensure environmental
damage is limited and furthermore that where
relevant, positive actions should be taken to improve
the existing environment for future generations.

Transparency

The Company aims to be transparent, and to ensure
that it communicates with its shareholders and
other stakeholders in a manner that enhances their
understanding of its business.

The Company maintains accounting documentation
that clearly identifies the true nature of all business
transactions, assets and liabilities, in line with
the relevant regulatory, accounting, and legal
requirements. No record or entry is knowingly false,
distorted, incomplete, or suppressed.

All reporting is materially accurate and complete and
in compliance in all material respects with stated
accounting policies and procedures. The Company
does not knowingly misstate ©r misrepresent
management information for any reason, and the
Company expects the same to apply to its suppliers.

The Company may be required to make statements
or provide reports to regulatory bodies, government
agencies or other government departments, as well
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as to the media. The Company ensures that such
statements or reports are correct, timely, and not
misleading, and that they are delivered through the
appropriate channels.

The Company provides through its website,
its Annual Report, other statements and any
appropriate information to enable shareholders
and stakeholders to assess the performance of
its business. The Company complies with the
applicable laws and regulations concerning the
disclosure of information relating to the Company.

Communities

The Company aims to ensure that its properties
which are associated with the provision of health
services provide significant value-adding facilities
in the communities where it invests. The Company
aims to ensure that its properties are applied
optimally for the use and benefit of communities.

Relations with Shareholders

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views and
places great importance on communication with
the shareholders of the Company. The Board is
responsible for the content of communication
regarding corporate issues and for communicating its
views to shareholders. The Board aims to ensure that
shareholders are provided with sufficient information
to understand the risk/reward balance to which they
are exposed by the holding of shares in the Company.
In addition to the Annual and Half Year reports that
are available to shareholders, regularly updated
information is available on the Company website,
including key policies, the investor relations policy
and details of the investment property portfolio.

The Board regularly monitors the shareholder profile
of the Company. With the majority of shareholders
being a combination of institutional investors and
private client brokers, the Board receives regular
updates on investors’ views and attitudes from the
Company’s broker and the Investment Adviser. During
the vear, several investor update meetings were held
between the shareholders and one or more of the
Chairman, the Investment Adviser and the Broker.
The results of these meetings were reported to the
Board as part of the formal reporting undertaken by
both the Broker and Investment Adviser. Included in
the Report of the Directors on page 66 are details of
substantial shareholdings in the Company.

The Board gives due consideration to any corporate
governance matters raised by shareholders.
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Should any shareholders wish to raise any matter
with the Board or Investment Adviser, they can
write to the Company at its registered address as
disclosed on page 146, or alternatively use one of
the contact links on the Company’s website., The
Annual General Meeting of the Company also
provides a forum where shareholders may discuss
issues with the Board and Investment Adviser.

Statement of Voting at General Meetings
The Company is committed to ongoing shareholder
dialogue and takes an active interest in voting
outcomes. Where there are substantial votes against
resolutions, the Company will seek the reasons for
any such vote and will detail any resulting actions
in an announcement.

At the AGM held on 2 August 2018, 24.44% of votes
were cast against the approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report. As announced with the AGM
results, the Board is aware that the recommendation
to vote against this specific resolution came from
PIRC and was due to the increase in the Chairman’s
fee. The Board also noted that ISS recommended to
vote in favour of this resolution.

During the period ended 31 March 2018, the
non-executive Directors’ fees were increased
from £30,000 to £32,000 per annum and the
non-executive Chairman’s fee was increased from
£35,000 to £50,000 per annum. As part of the
discussion to increase the fees, the Board carried out
abenchmarking exercise looking at comparative fees
of other REIT’s and noted that the previous levels of
fees were below the market average. The Board also
noted the market capitalisation of the Company,
the number of transactions being undertaken and
the number of additional Board meetings that were
being held as a result. There were 19 meetings held
during the period to 31 March 2018. No changes to
Directors’ remuneration were made during the year
ended 31 March 2019 and no changes are currently
proposed for the year to 31 March 2020.

Approval
The Corporate Governance Statement has been
approved by the Board.

On behalf of the Board

Michael Wrobel
Chairman
21 June 2019
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Company is
set by the Board. A resolution to approve the
Remuneration Policy was passed at the AGM of
the Company held on 2 August 2018, The policy
provisions set out below will apply until they
are next put to shareholders for renewal of that
approval, which must be at intervals of not more
than three years, or if proposals are made to vary
the policy. The Remuneration Policy is binding
and sets the parameters within which Directors’
remuneration may be set.

The remuneration policy of the Company is to
pay its non-executive Directors fees that are
appropriate for the role and the amount of time
spent in discharging their duties, that are broadly
in line with those of comparable real estate
investment companies and that are sufficient to
attract and retain suitably qualified and experienced
individuals.

The fees paid will be reviewed on an annual basis
and may also be reviewed when new non-executive
Directors are recruited to the Board. The Directors
of the Company are entitled to such rates of annual
fees as the Board at its discretion shall from time to
time determine. The Chairman of the Board and the
Audit and Management Engagement Committee
Chairman are entitled to receive fees at a higher
level than those of the other Directors, reflecting
their additional duties and responsibilities. Annual
fees are pro-rated where a change takes place
during the financial year.

In addition to the annual fee, under the Company’s
Articles of Association, if any Director is requested
to perform any special duties or services outside his
ordinary duties as a Director, he may be paid such
reasonable additional remuneration as the Board
may from time to time determine.

Directors’ Remuneration Components

Component Birector Rate at 1 Apnt 2019 Purpose of Remuneralion
Annual fee Chairman £50,000 Commutment as Chairman of a public company
Annual fee Non-executive Directors £32,000 Comrmitment as non-executive Directors of a public company?

Chairman of the Audit £4,000
and Management
Engagement Committee

Additicnal fee

For additional responsibilities and ume commitment?

Additional fee All Directors Discretionary

Expenses All Directors nfa

For extra or special services performed in their role
as a Director*

Reimbursement of expenses incurred in the
performance of duties as a Director®

Notes

! The Company's palicy I1s fer the Chairman of the Board to be paid & higher fee than the other Directors to reflect the more cnerous role.
? The Company’s Articles of Association limit the aggregate fees payable to the Board of Directors to £200,000* per annum.
3 The Company’s policy is for the Chairrnan of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee to be paid a higher fee than the other

Directors 1o reflect the more onergus role.

¢ This is a provision of the Company’s Articles Additional fees would only be paid in exceptional circumstances in relation to the

performance of extra or special services.

s Directors are entitled to claim expenses in respect of duties undertaken in connection with their role as a Director.
The Company has no employees other than the Directors. Accordingly, there are no differences in policy on the remuneration of

Directors and the remuneration of employees.

No Director is entitied to receive any remuneration which s performance-related. As a result, there are no performance conditions in
relation to any elements of the Directors’ remuneration in existence to set out in this Remuneration Policy.

* Subject to shareholder approvat at the AGM on & September 2019, the maximum aggregate fees payable to the Board of Directors will

increase to £250,000 per annum.
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Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance cover
is maintained by the Company on behalf of the
Directors.

Directors are entitled to be paid all expenses
preperly incurred in attending Board or shareholder
meetings or otherwise in or with a view to the
performance of their duties.

As all Directors are non-executive and there are
no employees, the Company does not operate
any share option or other long-term incentive
schemes and the Directors’ fees are not subject
to any performance criteria. No pension or other
retirement benefits schemes are operated by the
Company for any of its directors.

Service Contracts

No Director has a service contract with the
Company. The Directors are appointed under
letters of appointment. Their appointment and any
subsequent termination or retirement is subject to
the Articles of Association. The Directors’ letters
of appointment provide that, upon the termination
of a Director’s appointment, that Director must

resign in writing and all records remain the property
of the Company. The Director’s appointment can
be terminated in accordance with the Articles of
Association and without compensation. There is no
notice period specified in the Articles of Association
for the removal of Directors and all Directors are
subject to annual re-election by shareholders.

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration
The remuneration package for any new Chairman
or non-executive Director will be the same as the
prevailing rates determined on the bases set out
above. The Board will not pay any introductory fee
or incentive to any person to encourage them to
become a Director, but may pay the fees of search
and recruitment specialists in connection with the
appointment of any new non-executive Director.

Views of Shareholders

Any views expressed by shareholders on the
fees being paid to Directors would be taken into
consideration by the Board when reviewing levels
of remuneration.
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Remuneration Report

The Board presents its Directors’ Remuneration Report
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019. The Board
has prepared this report in accordance with the Large
and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013. An
ordinary resolution for the approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report will be put to shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

The law requires the Company’s auditor to
audit certain of the disclosures required. Where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated
as such. The auditor’s opinion is included in the
auditor’s report on pages 87 to 94.

Annual Statement from the Chairman
I am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for the year ended 31 March 2019,

As the Board has no executive Directors, it does
not consider it necessary to establish a separate
Remuneration Committee. The Board as a whole
is therefore responsible for decisions regarding
remuneration. The Board consists entirely of
non-executive Directors and the Company has no
employees.

The Directors are remunerated for their services at
such rate as the Directors shall from time to time
determine. The Board has set three levels of fees:
one for the Chairman, one for other Directors, and an
additional fee that is paid to the Director who chairs
the Audit and Management Engagement Committee.

Fees are reviewed annually in accordance with the
Remuneration Policy. The fee for any new Director
appointed will be determined on the same basis.

Directors’ fees for the year ended 31 March 2019 were
at a level of £50,000 per annum for the Chairman and
£32,000 per annum for other non-executive Directors.
The Chairman of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee received an additional fee of
£4,000 per annum. No changes relating to Directors’
remuneration were made during the year and no
changes are currently being proposed.

There were no other payments for extra or special
services in the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy was approved
at the AGM held on 2 August 2018. There will be no
significant change in the way the Remuneration
Policy will be implemented in the course of the next
financial year.

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the
maximum aggregate annual remuneration payable
to Directors is £200,000, and total remuneration
paid in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 was
£150,000. The Board is in the process of seeking to
appoint at least one additional Director. It is therefore
proposed that the Articles be amended to increase
the aggregate annual remuneration to £250,000. This
would provide some headroom for the appointment
of a new Director and include some flexibility for
future increases in remuneration. Resolutions to
amend the Remuneration Policy and the Company’s
Articles will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Directors’ Fees for the Period (audited)

The Directors who served during the period received the following emoluments in the form of fees:

Fees paid
Year ended
31 March 2019

Fees paid Total

Total Perod Period

Year ended 18 November 2016 18 November 2016

31 March 2018 to 31 March 2018’ 10 31 March 2018

7000 £7000 £:000 £'000
Michael Wrobel {Chairman) 50 50 58 58
Peter Baxter 32 32 42 42
Caroline Gulliver {Audit and
Management Engagement
Comrittee Chairman) 36 36 48 48
Alastar Moss 32 32 42 42
Total 150 150 190 130

'The period was greater than 12 months.

During the year no taxable benefits were received by any of the Directors.

The amounts paid to the Directors were for services as non-executive Directors.

Civitas Social Housing PLC .+ L




Cgbete Ta e - x Corporste Governance 589 -96 ] ST R i-

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the total aggregate remuneration and bhenefits in kind of the
Directors of the Company is subject to a maximum of in any financial year. Any change to this would require
shareholder approval.

The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance cover, at its expense, on the Directors’
hehalf.

Loss of Office (audited)
The Directors do not have service contracts with the Company but are engaged under letters of appointment
under which there is no entitlement to compensation for loss of office. Directors are subiect to annual
re-election by shareholders.

Directors’ Interests (audited):
There is no requirement under the Company’s Articles of Association or the terms of their appointment for
Directors to hold shares in the Company.

Company Performance

The following graph compares the performance for the period from IPO on 18 November 2016 to 31 March
2019, the total shareholder return of the Company’s Ordinary shares relative to the FTSE All share Index and
FTSE 350 REIT Index. Although the Company has no formal benchmark, these indices has been selected as the
FTSE All share represents all companies of a similar capital size, and the constituents of the FTSE 350 REIT
Index are UK based real estate companies and are therefore considered to represent the most appropriate
comparative.

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

140

-— Civitas Scocial
Housing PLC

120 & - FTSE Afl-Sharg
Total Retum
100 — FTSE 350/Real
v Estate Investment
Trusts Total Return

80

18 31
Nov  Jan  Mar May Jul  Sep Nov Jan Mar May Ju Sep Nov Jan Mar
2016 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The table below sets out, in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019:
a) the remuneration paid to the Directors; and

by the distributions made to shareholders by way of dividend.

Pernod

Yeat ended 18 November 2016

31 March 2079 to 31 March 2018

£°600 £°000

Directors’ remuneration 150 190
Dividends paid to Ordinary shareholders 17,881 10,500

Dwidends paid to C shareholders 9,966 -
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As at 31 March 2019, the Directors (including their connected persons) had beneficial interests in the following
number of shares in the Company:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Crdmary Qrdinary C
shares shares shares
Michael Wrobel 100,598 30,000 45,000
Peter Baxter 47,065 20,000 30,600
Caroline Gulhver bg,382 25,000 37500
Alastar Moss 11.766 5,000 7500

There have been no changes to Directors’ share interests between 31 March 2019 and the date of this Report.

None of the Directors or any persons connected with them had a material interest in the Company’s
transactions, arrangements or agreements during the year.

Voting at AGM
The Directors’ Remuneration Policy and Directors’ Remuneration Report for the period ended 31 March 2018
were approved at the AGM held on 2 August 2018. The votes cast by proxy on these resolutions were:

Votes for’ Votes against
Resolution Yo of voles cast % of voies cast Votes withheld Total votes cast
To approve the Directors” Remuneration Report 75 56 24 44 - 122,564,536
Ta approve the Directors” Remuneration Policy 100 00 oo - 122,564,537

'Votes ‘for’ include discretionary proxy votes granted to the Chairman by shareholders.

Further information about the votes against the Directors’ Remuneration Report at last year’s AGM is set out
in the Corporate Governance Statement on page 76.

Approval
The Directors’ Remuneration Report was approved by the Board on 21 June 2019.

On behalf of the Board

Michael Wrobel
Chairman
21 June 2019
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial period. Under
that law, the Directors have prepared the Group
financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”} as adopted
by the European Union and the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable
law). Under company law, the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and Company and of
the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that
period. In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

» state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union have been followed for
the Group financial statements and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising
FRS 101, have been followed for the Company
financial statements, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

» make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and

« prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Group and Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group and Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial positioh of the Group and Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements
and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with
the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the [AS Regulation.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the Company’'s website. Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report
and financial statements, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group and Company’s position and performance,
business model and strategy.

Fach of the Directors, whose names and functions
are listed in the Corpeorate Governance section of
the Annual Report, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:

» the Company financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS
101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and
applicable law), give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit of the Company;

= the Group financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit of the Group;
and

« the Strategic Report includes a fair review
of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Group,
together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that it faces.

Approval
This Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities was
approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Michael Wrobel
Chairman
21 June 2019
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Alternative Investment
Fund Manager (“Investment Manager”) are
each domiciled in the United Kingdom, the FCA
Handbook rules require that, among other things,
the AIFM makes available the following information
to shareholders of the Company under the AIFM
Directive (as implemented in the UK) and to
notify them of any material change to information
previously provided.

Investment Policy, Leverage and Liquidity

ALFMD 23(1){a)(b)(h))

The investment strategy and objectives of the
Company, the types of assets it may invest in and the
investment techniques it may employ, associated
risks and any investment restrictions are laid out
in the investment objectives and policy and other
sections of the Annual Report.

For information about the circumstances in which
the Company may use leverage, the types of
sources permitted and the associated risks and any
restrictions on the use of leverage and any collateral
and asset re-use arrangements, shareholders
are directed to the disclosures contained in the
investment objectives and policy section of these
financial statements as well as specific AIFMD
related disclosures further below.

Under the UK Listing Authority listing rules to
which the Company is subject it needs the prior
approval of its shareholders to make a material
change to its investment policy.

Since the Company is closed-ended without
redemption rights, liquidity risk management
is limited to the liquidity required to meet the
Company’s cbligations in relation to its financing
arrangements. The Investment Manager utilises
various risk assessment methods to measure the
risk of portfolio illiquidity to meet the Company’s
obligations. This measurement enables the
provision of management information to the
Investment Manager and the Board of the Company
to enable these risks to be monitored and managed.

Civitas Social Housing PLL

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD
23(1)(c))

The Company is a public limited company listed
on the London Stock Exchange. The Company is
incorporated under the laws of England and Wales.
The constitutional document of the Company is its
articles of association which may only be amended
by way of a special resolution of its shareholders.
Upon the purchase of shares, an investor becomes
a shareholder of the Company. A shareholder’s
liability to the Company will be limited to the
amount uncalled on their shares.

As the Company is incorporated under the laws
of England and Waies, it may not be possible for
a shareholder located outside that jurisdiction
to effect service of process within the local
jurisdiction in which that shareholder resides
upon the Company. All or a substantial portion of
the assets of the Company may be located outside
a local jurisdiction in which a shareholder resides
and as a result, it may not be possible to satisfy
a judgement against the Company in such local
jurisdiction or to enforce a judgement obtained in
the local jurisdiction’s courts against the Company.

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)(d), (e)
and (f))

The Investment Manager is a limited company with
its registered office at 136 Buckingham Palace Road,
London SW1W 9SA and is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority (FRN 648953).
It has been appointed by the Company to manage
the Company under an Investment Management
Agreement with effect from 24 August 2017.

The Investment Manager is responsible for
portfolio management and risk management and
monitoring of the assets of the Company and has
discretionary authority over the acquisition and
disposition of the Company’s assets, with power to
give guarantees and undertake other transactions
on behalf of the Company subject to the provisions
of the investment management agreement. The
Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring
compliance with the AIFMD.
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The Investment Manager's duties under the
investment management agreement are owed
to the Company as a whole rather than directly
to the shareholders, whether individually or in
groups. The Board of the Company is responsible
under the Investment Management Agreement for
representing the Company in its dealings with the
Investment Manager,

In order to comply with its regulatory obligations,
the Investment Manager holds professional
indemnity insurance.

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)
{d) and (1))

Indos Financial Limited (the "Depositary”) has
been appointed as the Depositary of the Company
under a Depositary Agreement agreed in accordance
with AIFMD requirements. The Depositary is a
company incorporated in England (registered
number 08255973) whose registered office is at 54
Fenchurch Street, London, EC3M 3]Y.Itisauthorised
to act as a Depositary by the FCA (FRN 602528).
The Depositary is responsible for safekeeping of
the Company’s investments, including holding in
custody those investments which are required to be
heldincustody and verifying ownershipand keeping
records of the Company’s other investments, and
for cash monitoring.

The Depositary’s duties under the Depositary
Agreement are owed to the Company as a whoie and
not directly to shareholders, whether individually
Or in groups.

The investments of the Company are not of a kind
required to be held in custody by the Depositary.

Independent Auditors (AIFMD 23¢(1){(d}}
The independent auditors of the Company
for the vyear ended 31 March 2019 were
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. The auditors’ duties
are owed to the Company as a whole. They have a
statutory responsibility to report to the members of
the Company as a whole in relation to the truth and
fairness of the Company’s state of affairs and profit
or loss.

Valuation (AIFMD 23(1)(g))

The assets of the Company are valued in accordance
with the provisions set out in the Valuation Policy.
The Investment Committee which has been set
up by the Investment Manager in respect of the
Company and it’s assets adds a further level of
oversight to the valuation process as set out on in
the Corporate Governance section of the Annual
Report.

Fees and Expenses (AFFMD 23(1)(i)

The Company incurs costs in the form of depositary
fees, custodian fees, bank fees and charges,
marketing fees, auditors’ fees, lawyers’ fees and
other fees.

Fair Treatment of Investors and Preferential

Treatment (AIFMD 23(1)(»
No preferential rights have been granted to any
existing shareholder.

The Company and the Investment Manager are
committed to ensuring that all shareholders are
treated fairly and in accordance with UK company
law. They have not and will not enter into any
arrangement with one shareholder which could
result in any overall material disadvantage to the
other shareholders.

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder
Interests in the Company ({AIFMD 23(1(1);
The Company is closed-ended and does not provide
for redemption or repurchase of the interests of
ordinary shareholders at their request.

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
{kj, 23¢(1)(m} and 23(1)(n))

The historic performance of the Company, to the
extent available, has been disclosed to shareholders
in the Company’s Annual and Half Yearly Reports,
which will be sent to shareholders and are available
from http://civitassocialhousing.comy/.

The latest NAV of the Company is published in the
latest Annual or Half Yearly Report or guarterly
NAV announcement.
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Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1){0)}
The Company does not have a prime broker.

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1){(p),23(4),23(3))
Information about the Company's risk profile and
risk management, total leverage and any material
change to the arrangements for managing the
Company’s liguidity, the proportion of assets (if
any) subject to special arrangements arising from
liquidity, the maximum permitted leverage or the
grant of rights of re-use of collateral or guarantees
in relation to leverage will be provided in the
Company’s Annual Reports or on the Company’s
website http://civitassocialhousing.comy,

Risk Profile and Risk Management (AIFMD
23(4)(c))

The appointment of the Investment Manager as
the AIFM of the Company under the AIFMD means
that it is responsible for risk management and
the ongoing process of identifying, evaluating,
monitoring and managing the risks facing the
Company in accordance with the requirements
of the AIFMD. The Board keeps the Investment
Manager’s performance of these responsibilities
under review as part of its overall responsibility
for the Company’s risk management and internal
controls.

The principal risks of the Company are set out in
the risk management section in the Annual Report.
The Investment Manager’s risk management
system incorporates regular review of these risks
and the establishment of appropriate risk limits
and internal control processes to mitigate the risks.
The sensitivity of the Company to relevant risks is
further detailed in the risk management section in
the Annual Report.

Civitas Social Housing PLC

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and

Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5))

As specified in the Investment objectives and policy
in the Annual Report, The Company has the ability
to put up to a maximum leverage of 40% of the
Company’s Gross Asset Value and the Investment
Manager oversees the use of leverage to ensure
that the use of borrowing is consistent with this
requirement. Leverage is calculated using gross
assets, with various adjustments, divided by net
assets.

Under AIFMD, the Company is required to calculate
leverage under the two methodologies specified
by the Directive, the ‘Gross Method’ and the
‘Commitment Method,’ the difference being that
the Commitment Method allows certain exposures
to be offset or netted. Disclosures are made on the
website of the Company.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the membeis of Civitas Social Housing PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
In cur opinion:

« (ivitas Social Housing PLC’s Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the
“financial statements”) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

» the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the
“Annual Report™), which comprise: the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at
31 March 2019; the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, and the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the
notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the sighificant accounting policies.

Our opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“1SAs {UK)™) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under 1SAs (UK} are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, as applicable to
listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical
Standard were not provided to the Group or the Company.

Other than those disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements, we have provided ne non-audit services to
the Group or the Company in the year from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.

Civitas Social Housing PLC



Independent Auditors’ Report

10 the members of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

Our audit approach

Overview

« Overall Group materiality: £8.8 million (period ended 3! March 2018:
£7.7 million), based on 1% of total assets.

»  Overall Company materiality: £8.1 million (period ended 31 March
2018: £7.2 million), based on 1% of total assets.

»  Group specific materiality: £2.2 million (period ended 31 March 2018:
£908,000), based on 10% of Company Adjusted Earnings, for financial
statement line items impacting Company Adjusted Earnings.

Materiality

Audit scope +  We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough
work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company,
the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which they

Roy seedi operate. The Group consists of a single reportable segment.

FETHES TS SN

+  Valuation of investment property (Group).

+  We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the
Company to communicate in our report.

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in
the financial statements.

Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to compliance with the Real Estate Investment Trust (*REIT™) status, and
we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements.
We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006 and the UK tax legislation. We evaluated management’s incentives
and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of
controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate journal entries to
increase revenue or reduce expenditure, and management bias in accounting estimates and judgmental areas
of the financial statements such as the valuation of investment properties. Audit procedures performed by the
engagement team included:

» Discussions with management, including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations and fraud, and review of the reports made by management;

» Understanding of management’s internal controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities;

» Assessment of matters, if any, reported to the Audit Committee;

»  Reviewing relevant meeting minutes, including those of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee;
+ Review of tax compliance with the involvement of our tax specialists in the audit;

+ Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability over the nature, timing and extent of our
testing of expenses;

« Procedures relating to the valuation of investment properties described in the related key audit matter
below; and

» Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinations and words.
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There are inherent limitations inthe audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compiliance
with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less
likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by,
for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through coilusion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks
of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had
the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in ferming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all

risks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment property

Refer to page 69 (Audit and Management Engagement
Committee Report), pages 105 and 106 (Summary of
significant accounting policies) and pages 114 to 117
(note 15 to the financial statements).

Investment properties are held at fair value of
£820.1 million as at 31 March 2019 (£516.2 million
as at 31 March 2018) in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position. The valuation of the Group’s
investment property is the key component of the
net asset value and underpins the Group’s result for
the year. The result of the revaluation this year was
a gain of £10.1 million (period ended 31 March 2018:
£31.0 million), which is accounted for within ‘Change
in fair value of investment properties’ in note 15 and
is a significant component of the result for the year.
The Group’s investment property portfolio consists of
specialist social housing properties located in England
and Wales which are let to Registered Providers of
social housing on long-term leases,

We focused on this area due to the existence of
significant judgement, coupled with the fact that only
small differences in individual property valuations
whenaggregatedcouldresultin material misstatement.
There is also a risk that management may influence
the significant judgements and estimates in respect
of investment property valuations in order to achieve
performance targets and meet market expectations.

Investment property valuations were carried out by
third party valuers, Jones Lang LaSalie Limited (“JLL”
or the “Valuer”). The Valuer was engaged by the
Directors, in accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Standards (“RICS”).

Experience of Valuer and relevance of its work

We read the Valuer's report and confirmed that the
approach used was consistent with the RICS guidelines
and the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union. We assessed the Valuer's competence
and capabilities and read their terms of engagement
with the Group, determining that there were no matters
that affected their independence and objectivity or
imposed scope limitations upon them.

Data provided to the Valuer and legal title

We validated the data provided to the Valuer by
management and found that it was consistent with the
information we audited. This data included inputs such
as current rent, rent indexation (CPI or CPI+1%), and
lease term, which we have agreed on a sample basis to
executed lease agreements as part of our audit work.

We verified legal ownership of properties through
independent title deed confirmations on a sample basis.

Assumptions and estimates used by the Valuer

We attended meetings with management and the
Valuer, at which the valuation methodology and the key
assumptions were discussed,

In our testing, which involved the use of our internal real
estate valuation experts, we considered the assumptions
utilised by JLL within the valuation and benchmarked
to market evidence. We challenged the Valuer regarding
the impact of the regulatory environment on investor
sentiment and asset values.

We concluded that the assumptions used by the Valuer
were consistent with our expectations and comparable
benchmarking information for the asset type, and the
assumptions were applied appropriately, reflected those
available comparable market transactions and reflected
the circumstances of the market at the year end.
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We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the Company to communicate in our report.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which they operate.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement
in the financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the Directors made subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering
future events that are inherently uncertain.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds
for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit
and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and
disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial
statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements

Company financial statements

Overall materiality

£8.8 million (period ended 31 March
2018: £7.7 million).

£8.1 million (period ended 31 March
2018: £7.2 million).

How we determined it

1% of total assets.

1% of total assets.

Rationale for
benchmark applied

The key measure of the Group's
performance is the valuation of investment
properties and the balance sheet as a
whole. Given this, we set an overall Group
materiality level based on total assets.

The Company’s main activity is the
holding of investments in subsidiaries.
On this basis, we set an overall
Company materiality level based on
total assets.

Specific materiality £2.2 million (period ended 31 March Not applicable.
2018: £908,000).

How we determined it 10% of Company Adjusted Earnings. Not applicable.

Rationale for A number of key performing indicators Not applicable.

benchmark applied

of the Group are driven by income
statement items and we therefore also
applied a lower specific materiality for
financial statement line items impacting
Company Adjusted Earnings.

In addition to overall Group materiality, a specific materiality was also applied to income statement line
items that impact Company Adjusted Earnings, which is based on profit before tax, adjusted to exclude fair
value gains on investment property and C Share amortisation. We set a specific overall materiality level of
£2.2 million (period ended 31 March 2018: £908,000), equating to 10% of Company Adjusted Earnings. In
arriving at this judgement, we considered the fact that Company Adjusted Earnings is a secondary financial
indicator of the Group (refer to the Strategic Report, page 51, where the term is defined in full).

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above £443,000 (Group audit) (period ended 31 March 2018: £385,000) and £407,000 (Company audit) (period
ended 31 March 2018: £360,000) as well as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.
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Going concern
In accordance with 1SAs (UK) we report as follows:
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Reporting obligation

Cutcome

We are required to report if we have anything
material to add or draw attention to in respect
of the Directors’ statement in the financial
statements about whether the Directors considered

We have nothing material to add or to draw
attention to.

However, because not all future events or conditions

can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee
as to the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. For example, the terms on
which the United Kingdom may withdraw from the
European Union are not clear, and it is difficult to
evaluate all of the potential implications on the
Group’s trade, customers, suppliers and the wider
economy.

it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements
and the Directors’ identification of any material
uncertainties to the Group's and the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern over a period
of at least twelve months from the date of approval
of the financial statements.

We are required to report if the Directors’ statement We have nothing to report.
relating to Going Concern in accordance with
Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent

with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an
apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report, Report of the Directors and Corporate Governance Statement, we also
considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies
Act 2006 (CAO06), ISAs (UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) require us also to
report certain opinions and matters as described below (required by ISAs (UK) unless otherwise stated).
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Strategic Report and Report of the Directors

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the informaticn given in the Strategic
Report and Report of the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2019 is consistent with the financial statements
and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CA06)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Report of
the Directors. (CAO6)

Corporate Governance Statement

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate
Governance Statement on pages 71 to 76 about internal controls and risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about share capital structures in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules sourcebook of the FCA (“DTR”) is consistent with the financial
statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CA06)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in this information. (CA06)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate
Governance Statement on pages 71 to 76 with respect to the Company’s corporate governance ¢ode and
practices and about its administrative, management and supervisory bodies and their committees complies
with rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the DTR. (CA06)

We have nothing to report arising from cur responsibility to report if a corporate governance statement has
not been prepared by the Company. (CA06)

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the principal risks that would threaten
the solvency or liquidity of the Group

We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding:

+ The Directors’ confirmation on page 52 of the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

+ The disclesures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed
or mitigated.

+ The Directors’ explanation on pages 56 and 57 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the
prospects of the Group, over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be
appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their
assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or
assumptions.

We have nothing to report having performed a review of the Directors’ statement that they have carried out
a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group and statement in relation to the longer-term
viability of the Group. Our review was substantially less in scope than an audit and conly consisted of making
inquiries and considering the Directors’ process supporting their statements; checking that the statements are
in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code™); and considering
whether the statements are consistent with the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and
their environment obtained in the course of the audit. (Listing Rules)
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Other Code Provisions
We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report when:

» The statement given by the Directors, on page 83, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole
to be fair, balanced and understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to
assess the Group’s and Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy is materially
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and Company obtained in the course of performing our
audit.

» The section of the Annual Report on pages 68 to 70 describing the work of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit
Committee.

« The Directors’ statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the Code does not properly
disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review
by the auditors.

Directors’ Remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006. (CA06)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 83, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or
the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s
wehsite at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report,

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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to the membe:s of Civitas Social Housing PLC comtipued

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneraticn Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the Directors on 31 March 2017
to audit the financial statements for the period ended 17 November 2016 and subsequent financial periods.
The period of total uninterrupted engagement is 3 years, covering the periods ended 17 November 2016,
31 March 2018 and year ended 31 March 2019.

Sandra Dowling (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

21 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the vear ended 31 March 2019

For the
yea: ended
31 March 2019

From
18 November 2018
to 31 March 2018

No e £000 £'000
Revenue
Rental income 5 35,738 18,606
Net rental income 35,738 18,606
Directors’ remuneration (163) (205)
{nvestment advisory fees 16,457) 15,773
General and adrministrative expenses (3.022) (2,915)
Total expenses (9,642} {8,893)
Change in fair value of iInvestment properties 15 3,652 30,633
Operating profit 23,748 40,346
Finance income 10 491 13
Finance expensé — relating to bank borrowings 1 {3.975} {1,041}
Finance expensé — C shares armortisation 1 (6,400) {2,792}
Profit before tax 19,864 36,926
Taxation 12 - -
Profit being total comprehensive income for the period 19,864 36,926
Earnings per share — hasic 13 4.67p 10 55p
Earnings per share — diluted 13 4.22p 627p

All amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income above arise from continuing

operations.

The notes on pages 102 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Civitas Social Housing PLC -



- Fingncis} Staterments 97 - 142

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 Maich 2019

31 March 2018

31 March 2018

Yol £°5600 £7000
Assets
Non-current assets
Irvestment property 15 820,094 516,222
Qiher receivables 17 6,824 -
) 826,918 516,222
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 17 5,723 3,315
Cash and cast equivalents 18 54,347 249,608
7 o o 60,070 252,923
Tolasses * T T T T s s
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 (15,324} {10,1786)
C shares 21 - (298,752}
(15,324) (308,928
Non-current iabilities
Bank and loan borrowings 20 (205,156) 190,822)
Total liabilities _ N (2-20,480) (399:750)
Total net assets S ] 666508 269,395
Equity
Share capital 22 6,225 3,500
Share premium reserve 23 292,405 -
Capital reduction reserve 24 331,625 331,625
Retained earnings 25 36,253 34,270
Total equity T B 666508 369,395
Net assets per share - basic 26 107.08p 105 54p
Net assets per share - diluted 26 107.08p 105 54p

These consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 135 were approved by the Board of Directors of Civitas
Sacial Housing PLC and authorised for issue on 21 June 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Michael Wrobel

Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

21 June 2019
Company No: 10402528

The notes on pages 102 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the vear ended 31 March 2019

Share Capital
Share premium reduction Retained Tolal
capital reserve reserve earnings equIty
o oe £000 7000 £'000 7000 £'0660

Balance at 18 November 2016 - - - 31 (31}
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the period - - - 36,926 36,926
Issue of Ordinary shares
Issue of share capitat 22 3,500 346,500 - - 350,000
Share Issue costs 23 - (7000} - - (7000}
Cancellation of share premium reserve 23 - {339,500) 339,500 - -
Dividends paid
Total intenm dividends for the period ended
31 March 2018 {3 00p) 4 - - (2875) (2,625) (10,500
Balance at 31 March 2018 3,500 - 331,825 34,270 369,390
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the period - - - 19,864 19,864
Issue of Ordinary shares
Issue of share capnal 22 2,725 292,461 - - 295,186
Share 1ssug costs 23 - (56) - - {66}
Dividends paid
Total intenm dividends for the period ended
31 March 2019 (5 00p} i 15{ _ - - - {17881} (17.881)
Balance at 31 March 2019 6,225 292,405 331,625 36,253 666,508

The notes on pages 102 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

kor the vear ended 31 March 2018

Cash flows from aperating activities
Profit for the penod before taxation
- Change in fair value of nvestment properties

- Rent and incertive straight ine adjustmerts

Finance income

Finance expense

Increase In trade and other receivables

{Decreasel/increase 10 trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Interest receved

Net cash flow generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of investment properties

Acquisition costs

Purchase of subsidiary company
Sale proceeds on sale of subsidary company
Lease incentives paid

Rastricted cask held as retention money

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Fihancing activities

Proceeds from the 1ssue of Ordinary share captal
Share 1ssue ¢osts paid

Dividends paid to equity shareholders

Proceeds from the 1ssue of C shares

C share 1ssue cosis pad

Dirvidends paid to C shareholders

Bank horrowings advanced

Bark borrowing 1ssue costs pad

Loan interest paid

Net cash flow generated from financing activities

Net (decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents
Unrestricted cash and cash equivatents at the start of the period

Unrestrnicted cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

For the From
year ended 18 November 2016
31 March 2018 to 31 March 2018
RN oo £000
19,864 36,928

(3,652} {30,633

(314) {3372)

(491) (413}
10,375 3,833

(2,789) {2,540Q)
{149} 803

22,844 764;
4N 413

- 23,335 8057
(267,308) {458,564)

{9,421) (19,051)
{25,470) -
4,338 -
(3,178} -

{936} (6,283}

(302,577) 483,898
22 - 350,000
23 (56} {7000)
(17,591) {10,073}
21 - 302,000
21 - {6,040)
21 {9,9686) -
20 115,990 92,457
20 (2,374} {1,767}
(2,958) (417}
27 83045 719,166
(196,197} 243,325
18 243,325 -
8 a7128 243325

The notes on pages 102 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 March 2019

1. Corporate information

Civitas Social Housing PLC (the “Company”) was incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act
2006 as a public company limited by shares on 29 September 2016 with company number 10402528 under the
name Civitas REIT PLC which was subsequently changed to the existing name on 3 October 2016,

The address of the registered office is Beaufort House, 51 New North Road, Exeter, EX4 4EP. The Company is
registered as an investment company under section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and is domiciled in the
United Kingdom.

The Company did not begin trading until 18 November 2016 when the shares were admitted to trading on the
London Stock Exchange (“LSE”).

The Company’s Ordinary shares are admitted to the Official List of the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA™),
and traded on the LSE.

The principal activity of the Company is to act as the ultimate parent company of Civitas Social Housing PLC
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), whose principal activity is to provide shareholders with an attractive level
of income, together with the potential for capital growth from investing in a portfolio of social homes.

2. Basis of preparation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance
with the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the FCA and with International Financial Reporting
Standards {“IFRS”) and IFRS Interpretation Committee (“IFRS IC”) interpretations as issued by the IASB and
as adopted by the European Union (“EU”), and in accordance with Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and the
Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies using [FRS.

The comparative information disclosed in the consolidated financial statements relates to the period from
18 November 2016 to 31 March 2018. The period covered by the comparative information varies in length and
the level of activities and therefore is not comparable to the current period.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified for
the Group’s investment properties at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group has chosen to adopt EPRA best practice guidelines for calculating key metrics such as net asset
value and earnings per share. These are disclosed on page 51 with supporting calculations in Appendix 1 on
pages 147 and 148.

2.1. Functional and presentation currency
The financial information is presented in Pounds Sterling which is also the functional currency of the Company,
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£’000), except where otherwise indicated.

2.2. Going concern

The Group benefits from a secure income stream from long leases with the Housing Associations, which
are not overly reliant on any one tenant and present a well-diversified risk. The Group’s cash balances as at
31 March 2019 were £54.3 million, of which £47.1 million was readily available and it had bank borrowings of
£208 .4 million.

As a result, the Directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its financing and other business risks
and that the Group will remain viable, continuing to operate and meet its liabilities as they fall due,

The Directors believe that there are currently no material uncertainties in relation to the Group’s ability to
continue for the period of at least 12 months from the date of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
The Board is, therefore, of the opinion that the going concern basis adopted in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is appropriate.
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2.3. New standards, amendments and interpretations
The following new standards are now effective and have been adopted for the year ended 31 March 2019.

« Adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The standard replaced 1AS 39 Financial Instruments
and contains two primary measurement categories for financial assets.

Management have reviewed the requirements of IFRS 9. The adoption of IFRS 9 from 1 April 2018 resulted in
no adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In accordance with the transitional
provisions, comparative figures have not been restated. The Group's principal financial assets comprise trade
receivables, which will continue to be measured at amortised cost. The following changes have been identified.

Under IFRS 9 the Group now applies an expected credit loss model when calculating impairment losses on
its trade and other receivables and considers the probability of default occurring over the contractual life of
its trade receivables and contracts. The specific situation of each tenant has been evaluated using a provision
matrix as allowed under IFRS 9. This did net result in a material change in the loss allowance recognised under
IFRS 9 compared to the previous impairment provision held under IAS39.

» Adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts: The standard replaced 1AS 11 Construction
Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue. The standard introduces a new revenue recognition model that
recognises revenue either at a point in time or over time.

As all of the Group’s revenue derives from leases which are outside the scope of IFRS 15 there is no change to
accounting policies arising from the adoption of IFRS 15.

+ Adoption of Amendment to IAS 40, Investment Property: The amendment to IAS 40 Investment
Property clarifies when assets are transferred to, or from, investment properties.

Management have assessed the impact of the amendment to IAS 40 on the classification of existing property
at 1 April 2018 and has concluded that no reclassifications are required on adoption of the amendment.

2.4. New standards, amendments and interpretations effective for future accounting periods

The following are new standards, interpretations and amendments, which are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted in this financial information, that will or may have an effect on the Group’s future financial
statements:

« IFRS 16 Leases: Introduction of a single, on-balance sheet accounting model (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

The Directors have assessed that the adoption of this will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the Group does not hold any material operating leases as lessee.

+ IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: Clarifies the application of recognition and
measurement requirements in IAS 12 Income Taxes, when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

The Directors have assessed that the adoption of this new interpretation will not have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

« Amendments to ITRS 3 Business Combinations: Clarifies the definition of abusiness. Asignificant
change in the amendment is the option for an entity to assess whether substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single asset or group of similar assets. If such
a concentration exists, the transaction is not viewed as an acquisition of a business and no further
assessment of the business combination guidance is required. This will be relevant where the value
of the acquired entity is concentrated in one property, or a group of similar properties {effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with earlier application permitted).

There will be no impact on transition since the amendments are effective for business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the transition date.
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2.5. Segmental information

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal financial
reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker,
which in the Group’s case is delegated to the Investment Adviser, who has formed an Executive Team, in order
to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance,

The internal financial reports received by the Investment Adviser’s Executive Team contain financial
information at a Group level as a whole and there are no reconciling items between the results contained in
these reports and the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors consider the Group’s property portfolio represents a coherent and diversified portfolio with
similar economic characteristics and as a result these individual properties have been aggregated into a
single operating segment. In the view of the Directors there is accordingly one reportable segment under the
provisions of IFRS 8.

All of the Group’s properties are based in the UK. Geographical information is provided to ensure compliance
with the diversification requirements of the Company, other than this no geographical grouping is contained
in any of the internal financial reports provided to the Investment Adviser’s Executive Team and, therefore no
geographical segmental analysis is required by IFRS 8.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the Directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are gutlined below:

3.1. Significant estimate - Valuation of investment property

The Group uses the valuation carried out by its independent valuers as the fair value of its property portfolio.
The valuation is based upon assumptions including future rental income and the appropriate discount rate.
The valuers also make reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. Further
information is provided in note 15.

The Group’s properties have been independently valued by Jones Lang LaSalle Ltd. (“JLL” or the “Valuer™)
according to the definitions published by the Royai Institute of Chartered Surveyors’ (“RICS™) Valuation —
Professional Standards, July 2017, Global and UK Editions (commonly known as the “Red Book”). JLL is cne of
the most recognised professional firms within social housing valuation and has sufficient current local and
national knowledge of both social housing generally and Specialist Supported Housing {“SSH”) and has the
skills and understanding to undertake the valuations competently.

With respect to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, investment properties are valued at their fair
value at each balance sheet date in accordance with IFRS 13 which recognises a variety of fair value inputs
depending upon the nature of the investment. Specifically:

Level 1 - Unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active (typically quoted) markets.
Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets,

Level 3 — External inputs are “unobservable”. Value is the director’s best estimate, based on advice from
relevant knowledgeable experts, use of recognised valuation techniques and a determination of which
assumptions should be applied in valuing such assets and with particular focus on the specific attributes of
the investments themselves.
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Given the bespoke nature of each of the Group's investments, the particular requirements of due diligence
and financial contribution obtained from the vendors together with the recent emergence of SSH, all of the
Group’s investment properties are included in Level 3.

3.2. Significant judgement - Business combinations

The Group acquires subsidiaries that own investment properties. At the time of acquisition, the Group
considers whether each acquisition represents the acquisition of a business or the acquisition of an asset,
Management considers the substance of the assets and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether
the acquisition represents the acquisition of a business.

The Group accounts for an acquisition as a business combination where an integrated set of activities is
acquired in addition to the property. Where such acquisitions are not judged to be the acquisition of a
business, they are not treated as business combinations. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity is
allocated between the identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity based upon their relative fair values at
the acquisition date, Accordingly, no goodwill or additional deferred tax arises.

With the exception of one acquisition detailed below, all other corporate acquisitions during the year have
been treated as asset purchases rather than business combinations because no integrated set of activities was
acquired.

During the year, the Group entered into a purchase of TLC Care Homes Limited which carried out operational
activities. Upon acquisition, investment properties were transferred into another Group company and the
company was sold. Further details are shown in note 15.1 to the financial statements.

3.3. Significant judgement — Operating lease contracts - the Group as lessor

The Group has acquired investment properties that are subject to commercial property leases with Registered
Providers. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
particularly the duration of the Jease terms and minimum lease payments, that it retains all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for the leases as operating leases.

4. Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set
out below. The policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

4.1. Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial information of the Group as at the period end
date.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. All intra—group transactions,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. The financial information of the subsidiaries
is included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases.

If an equity interest in a subsidiary is transferred but a controlling interest continues to be held after the
transfer then the change in ownership interest is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Accounting policies of the subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Company.
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4.2. Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is initially measured
at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given, including expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the investment property. After initial recognition, investment property is stated at its
fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits are associated
with the expenditure. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is incurred in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions made for the valuation of investment
properties are discussed in note 3.

4.3. Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases as discussed in note 3.

Properties leased out under operating leases are included in investment property in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant leases.

4.4. Financial Assets

Classification
From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

» those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss); and

» those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are amounts due in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in
one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non—current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment provision. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows.
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Impairment
The Group’s financial assets are subject to the expected credit loss model.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the recejvables.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of up to 36 months before
31 March 2019 or 1 April 2018, respectively, and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within
this period. The historical foss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the liability of the tenants to settle the receivable. Such forward-looking
information would include: changes in economic, regulatory, technological and environmental factors, (such
as industry outlook, GDP, employment and politics); external market indicators; and tenant base.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery inciude, among others, the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficuities of the debtor. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash held by lawyers and liquidity funds with a term of no
more than three months that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash held by lawyers is money held in escrow for expenses expected to be incurred in relation to investment
properties pending completion. These funds are available immediately on demand.

4.5. Financial liabilities
The Group recognises a financial liability when it first becomes a party to the contractual rights and obligations
in the contract.

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, minus (in the case of a financial liability that is
not at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing the financial
ligbility. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, unless the Group opted to measure
a liability at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities, Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost until settled. The fair value of a non-interest bearing
liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date of the liability is less than one year, discounting
is omitted.

Bank and other borrowings

All bank and other borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, all bank and other borrowings are measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. Any attributable transaction costs relating to the issue of the bank borrowings are
amortised through the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive Income over the life of the debt instrument on a
straight-line basis.

Civitas Sccial Housing PLC



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements conunued

C share financial liability

C shares are convertible preference shares and under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, meet
the definition of a financial liability. C shares are recognised on issue at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, C shares are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Amortisation is credited to or charged to finance income or finance costs in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. Transaction costs are deducted from proceeds at the
time of issue,

4.6. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

4.7. Taxation

Taxation on the profit or loss for the period not exempt under UK REIT regulations is comprised of current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive [Income except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised as a direct movement in equity, in which case it is recognised as a direct
movement in equity. Current tax is expected tax payable on any non REIT taxable income for the period, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous periods.

The current tax charge is caiculated on profits arising in the period and in accordance with legislation which
has been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax that is
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

4.8. Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

Capital assets comprise the following:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

7000 £°000

Proceeds from the 1ssue of Ordinary shares and retained earnings thereon 666,508 369,395
Proceeds from the i1ssue of C shares and retained earnings therecn - 298,752
Bark and loan borrowings 205,156 30,822
T 871664 758,969

Until the Group is fully invested and pending re-investment or distribution of cash receipts, the Group will
invest in cash, cash equivalents, near cash instruments and money market instruments.

The Directors may use gearing to enhance equity returns. The leve! of borrowing will be on a prudent basis for
the asset class and will seek to achieve a low cost of funds, whilst maintaining the flexibility in the underlying
security requirements and the structure of the Group.
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The Group may, following a decision of the Board, raise debt from banks and/or the capital markets and the
aggregate borrowings of the Group will always be subject to an absolute maximum, calculated at the time of
drawdown, of 40% of the Gross Asset Value on a fully invested basis.

4.9. Dividends payable to shareholders

Dividends to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved. In the UK, interim dividends are recognised
when paid.

4.10. Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of ongoing leases
and is shown gross of any UK income tax. Lease incentives are spread evenly over the lease term.

4.11. Finance income
Finance income is recognised as interest accrues on cash and cash equivalent balances held by the Group.

4.12. Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with bank and other
borrowings. Bank interest and bank charges are recognised on an accruals basis. Borrowing transaction costs
are amortised over the period of the loan.

After initial recognition, C shares are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Amortisation is credited or charged to finance income or finance costs. Transaction costs are
amortised to the earliest conversion period.

4.13. Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis.

4.14. Investment advisory fees
[nvestment advisory fees are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive [ncome on an
accruals basis.

4.15. Share issue costs
The costs of issuing or reacquiring equity instruments (other than in a business combination) are accounted
for as a deduction from equity.

5. Rental income

For the From

yuar ended 18 Novermber 2016

31 March 2019 to 31 March 2018

£'000 £°000

Rental income from investment property 35,424 18,274
Rent straight line adjustments 459 332
Lease incentive adjustments ) {145} -
Total 35,738 18,606

As per the lease agreements between the Group and the Registered Providers, the Registered Providers are
responsible for the settlement of all present and future rates, taxes, costs and other impositions payable in
respect of the property. As a result, no direct property expenses were incurred.

Civitas Social Housing PLC



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements connnued

6. Directors’ remuneration

fFaor the From

year ended 18 November 2016

31 March 2018 to 31 March 2018

000 £:000

Directors’ fees 1680 180
Employer's National Insurance Contributions 13 15
Total 163 205

The Directors are remunerated for their services at such rate as the Directors shall from time to time determine.

At IPQ, the Chairman was entitled to a fee of £35,000 per annum, and the other Directors of the Board to a
fee of £30,000 per annum (with the exception of the Chairman of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee who was entitled to an additional fee of £2,500 per annum).

At a Board meeting on 26 July 2017, a resolution was passed authorising an increase to the fees of the Chairman
to £50,000 per annum, the Chairman of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee and the other
Directors to £36,000 per annum and £32,000 per annum respectively effective from 1 August 2017.

7. Particulars of employees
The Group had no employees during the year (31 March 2018 period: nil) other than the Directors.

8. Investment advisory fees

For the From

vear ended 18 November 2016

31 March 20139 10 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000

Adwvisory fee 6,457 5,773
Total 6,457 5,773

Civitas Housing Advisors Limited (“CHA”) is appointed as the Investment Adviser of the Company. Under
the current Investment Management Agreement, the Advisory Fee shall be an amount calculated in respect
of each Quarter, in each case based upon the Portfolio Net Asset Value (further explained in note 16) most
recently announced to the market at the relevant time (as adjusted for issues or repurchases of shares in the
period between the date of such announcement and the date of the relevant calculation), on the following
basis:

a) on that part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value up to and including £250 million, an amount equal to
1% of such part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value;

b) on that part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value over £250 million and up to and including £500 million,
an amount equal to 0.9% of such part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value;

¢; on that part of the Portfolioc Net Asset Value over £500 million and up to and including £1,000
million, an amount equal to 0.8% of such part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value;

) on that part of the Portfolic Net Asset Value over £1,000 million, an amount equal to 0.7% of such
part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value.

The appointment of the Investment Adviser shall continue in force unless and until terminated by either party
giving to the other not less than 12 months’ written notice, such notice not to expire earlier than 30 November
2021.

Changes to the Investment Advisory fee and changes to the appointment period effective from 26 April 2019
are detailed in note 35 on page 135.
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For the
vear eanaed
21 March 20018

From
18 November 2016
1o 31 March ZN8

£000 £'000
Legal and professional fees 1.049 1,136
Admiristration fees 717 581
Consultancy fees 176 274
Audit fees 21 308
Abortive costs 18 168
Bad debts 421 -
Valuation fees 96 96
Depositary fees 60 a3
Grants and donations 28 79
Irsurance 65 32
Marketirg 101 71
Regulatory fees 19 29
Sundry expenses 61 57
Directors’ expenses - 1
%'&al S - S 3,022 ——2_.-915

Abortive costs represent legal and professional fees incurred in relation to acquisition of investment properties
that were considered but subsequently aborted.

Services provided by the Company's auditors and their associates

The Group has obtained the following services from the Company’s auditors and their associates:

For the
vear ended
31 March 2018

From
18 Novermber 2016
to 31 March 2018

7000 £'000

Audit of the financial statements 180 273

Review of the half year financial statements 31 35

Corporate services relating to the C share conversion 10 -

Corporate services relating to the inttial launch - b5

Corporate services relating to the C share fund raise - 200

Total 220 563

10. Finance income

For the From

year ended 18 November 2016

31 March 20198 to 31 March 2018

£'000 £000

Interest and dividends received on liquidily funds 486 413

Bark interest received 5 -
Total S - i - S - - 491 - W ) 4——{3—
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11. Finance expense

For the
yedr enged
31 March 2019

From
18 November 2016
to 31 March 2018

Fo00 £'000
Bank charges 2 4
Interest paid and payable on bank borrowings 3,048 902
Bark borrowing commitment fees 207 2
Amortisation of loan arrangement fees 718 126
;Zmance expenses associated wwﬂt—h bar;k 7b£3r7rgv;|7ngs o T 3,975 B 1 ,70;17 )
Amortisation of C §hare lability 6.400 2,792
Total 7 10,375 3,833

12. Taxation

As a UK REIT, the Group is exempt from corporation tax on the profits and gains from its property investment
business, provided it meets certain conditions as set out in the UK REIT regulaticns. For the current period
ended 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any non-qualifying profits and accordingly there is no tax charge
in the period. If there were any non-qualifying profits and gains, these would be subject to corperation tax.

It is assumed that the Group will continue to be a group UK REIT for the foreseeable future, such that deferred
tax has not been recognised on temporary differences relating to the property rental business. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the unutilised residual current period losses as it is not anticipated
that sufficient residual profits will be generated in the future.

For the From

year ended 18 November 2016

31 March 2019 to 31 March 2018
£'000 £:000

Corporation tax charge/icredit) for the period — _

Total - _

The tax charge for the period is less than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%. The differences
are explained below.

For the From
year ended 18 November 2016
31 March 2019 to 31 March 2018
000 £'000
Group
Prefit/{loss) before taxaton - 19,864 36,926
UK corporation tax rate T 19.00% 19 27%
Theoretical tax at UK corporation tax rate 3,774 71186
Effects of.
Change in value of exempt investrnent properties (694} {5,903)
Exempt REIT income (4,702) {2,352)
Amounts not deductible for tax purposes 1,286 691
Unutihsed remdualfu_{irlzmp_erm_d}?x losses o 326 448
Total - e - S
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The standard rate of corporation tax was reduced from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017. The Government has
announced that the corporation tax standard rate is to be reduced to 17% with effective date from 1 April 2020.

REIT exempt income includes property rental income that is exempt from UK corporation tax in accordance

with Part 12 of CTA 2010.

13. IFRS Earnings per share

Eamings per share (“EPS”) amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity
helders of the Company by the weighted average number of Crdinary shares in issue during the period.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting earnings and the number of shares for the effects of dilutive options and
other dilutive potential Ordinary shares (i.e. the C shares).

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following:

Far the
yeal gnded

31 March 2018

From
18 November 2016
to 31 March 2018

Calculation of Basic Earnings per share

Net profit attnbutable to Ordinary shareholders (£'C00)
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares
Earmings per share — hasic
Calculation of Diluted Earnings per share

Net profit attributable to Ordinary shareholders {(£7000)

Add back finance costs associated with the C share labiity (£°000)

Total {£7000}

Weighted average number of Ordinary shares

Etfects of dilutior from C shares

18,864
425,393,423
4.67p

19,864
6,400
26,264

425,393,423
197,667957
622,461,380

36,926
350,000,000

350,000,000
283,065,815
633,065,815

Earrings per share — diluted

4.22p

6 27p

14, Dividends

For the
year ended

31 March 2012

OG0

From

18 November 2016
to 31 March 2018
£'000

Dividend of 125p for the 3 months to 31 March 2018
[0 75p 3 months to 31 March 2017)

Dividend of 125p for the 3 months 1o 30 Jure 2018
{0 75p 3 months 1o 30 June 2017)

Dividend of 126p for the 3 menths to 30 September 2018
10 75p 3 months to 30 September 2017)

Dividend ot 125p for the 3 months to 31 December 2018
[0 7bp 3 months 1o 31 December 2017)

Total

4,375
4,375
4,375

4,756
17,881

2,625

2,625

2,628

On 10 May 2018 the Company announced a dividend of 1.25 pence per share in respect of the period 1 January
2018 to 31 March 2018. The dividend payment was made on 8 June 2018 to shareholders on the register as at

18 May 2018.
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On 3 August 2018 the Company announced a dividend of 1.25 pence per share in respect of the period 1 April
2018 to 30 June 2018. The dividend payment was made on 7 September 2018 to shareholders on the register
as at 17 August 2018.

On 1 November 2018 the Company announced a dividend of 1.25 pence per share in respect of the period
1 July 2018 to 30 September 2018. The dividend payment was made on 30 November 2018 to shareholders on
the register as at 8 November 2018.

On 29 November 2018 the Company announced a dividend of 1.11 pence per share in respect of the period
1 October 2018 to 21 December 2018, The dividend payment was made on 11 January 2019 to shareholders on
the register as at 7 December 2018.

On 31 January 2019 the Company announced a dividend of 0.14 pence per share in respect of the period
22 December 2018 to 31 December 2018. The dividend payment was made on 28 February 2019 to shareholders
on the register as at 8 February 2019.

On 8 May 2019 the Company announced a dividend of 1.325 pence per share in respect of the period 1 January
2019 to 31 March 2019. The dividend payment was made on 7 June 2019 to shareholders on the register as at
17 May 2019. The financial statements do not reflect this dividend.

15. Investment property

For the From

yvear ended 18 November 2016

31 March 2019 to 31 March 2018

£000 £000

Balance at beginning of pericd 516,554 -

Property acquisitions 289,304 465,622

Acquisition costs 10,916 20,067

Change n fair value dunng the penod 10,144 30,965

Value advised by the property valuers 826,918 516,554

Adjustments for lease incentive assets and rent straight line assets recognised (6,824) (332)

Total 820,094 516,222

For the From

year ended 18 November 2016

31 March 2018 to 31 March 2018

Change in fair value of investment properties: £'000 £'000

Change in valuation dunng the genod 10,144 30,965
Adjustment for lease incentives and rent straight line

adiustments recognised In assets as

Start of the penod 332 -

End of the period ) ) 16,824) (332

3,652 30,633

In accordance with “IAS 40: Investment Property”, the investment property has been independently valued
at fair value by JLL, an accredited external valuer with recognised and relevant professional qualifications
and recent experience of the location and category of the investment property being valued, however the
valuations are the ultimate responsibility of the Directors.
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JLL valued the Civitas Social Housing PLC property portfolio on the basis of each individual property and the
theoretical sale of the properties without the benefit of any corporate wrapper at £826,918,000 as at 31 March
2019 (31 March 2018: £516,554,000).

JLL has provided valuation services to the Company with regards to the properties during the period. In
relation to the period ended 31 March 2019, the proportion of the total fees payable by the Company to JLU's
total fee income was less than 5% and is therefore minimal. Additionally, JLL has a rotation policy in place
whereby the signatories on the valuations rotate after seven years,

All corporate acquisitions during the pericd have been treated as asset purchases rather than business
combinations because they are considered to be acquisitions of properties rather than businesses.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy for investment property:

ST SRTL
LR oo
Investment properties measured at fair value:
31 March 2019 820,094 - - 820,094
31 March 2018 516,222 - - 516,222

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during any of the periods, nor have there heen any
transfers between Level 2 and Level 3 during any of the periods.

The valuations have been prepared in accordance with the RICS Valuation - Professional Standards
(incorporating the International Valuation Standards) by JLL, one of the leading professional firms engaged
in the social housing sector.

As noted previously all of the Group’s investments are reported as Level 3 in accordance with IFRS 13 where
external inputs are “unobservable” and value is the Directors’ best estimate, based upon advice from relevant
knowledgeable experts.

In this instance, the determination of the fair value of investment property requires an examination of the
specific merits of each property that are in turn considered pertinent to the valuation.

These include:

1y the regulated social housing sector and demand for the facilities offered by each SSH property
owned by the Group;

i1y the particular structure of the Group’s transactions where vendors, at their own expense, meet the
majority of the refurbishment costs of each property and certain purchase costs;

iit) detailed financial analysis with discount rates supporting the carrying value of each property;

iv} underlying rents for each property in comparison to the market rent, with consideration given as
whether a property is over rented; and

vy afull repairing and insuring lease with annual indexation based on CPI or CP1+1% and effectively
25 years outstanding in most cases with a Housing Association itself regulated by the Homes and
Communities Agency.

The following descriptions and definitions relating to valuation technigues and key unobservable inputs made
in determining fair values are as follows:
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Valuation techniques: market value method

The estimated amount for which a property should exchange between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an
arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion. Such marketing to be structured such that the sale is undertaken in such a manner and
in a specific market with a view to maximising the value achieved.

There are two main unobservable inputs that determine the fair value of the Group’s investment property:

iy The rate of inflation as measured by CPI; it should be noted that all leases benefit from either CPI
or CPI+1 indexation.

it} The discount rate applied to the rental flows.

Key factors in determining the discount rates applied include the regulated social housing sector and demand
for each SSH property owned by the Group, costs of acquisition and refurbishment of each property, the
anticipated future underlying cash flows for each property, benchmarking of each underlying rent for each
property (passing rent), and the fact that all of the properties within the Group’s portfolio have the benefit of
full repairing and insuring leases entered into by a Housing Association.

As at the halance sheet date the lease lengths within the Group’s portfolio ranged from an effective 22 years to
25 years with a weighted average unexpired lease term of 24.4 years (2018: 24.1). The greater the length then,
all other metrics being equal, the greater the value of the property.

Sensitivities of measurement of significant unobservable inputs

As set out within significant accounting estimates and judgements at 3.1 above, the Group’s property
investment valuation is open to judgements and is inherently subjective by nature. As a result the following
sensitivity analysis has been prepared:

Average discount rate and range
The average discount rate used in the Group’s property Portfolio Valuation is 5.3% (2018: 6.5%).

The range of discount rates used in the Group’s property Portfolio Valuation is from 4.9% to 6.0% (2018: 5.6%
to 9.1%).

The table below illustrates the change to the value of investment properties if the discount rate and CPI used
for the portfolio valuation calculations are changed:

065 r +CH e G204 - cze

-
GTCOUT TETG n Ao rate P CrP
0G0 R £ 000 Co0

Increase/idecreasel in the IFRS farr value of investment properties at
31 March 2019 33,203 {30,788) 25,651 (24,711)
31 March 2018 20,634 (19,158} 16,062 (15,412)

15.1. Subsidiary resale

For the From
year ended 18 Novernber 2016
31 March 2019 10 31 March 2018
£000 £'000
Balance at the beginning of the perod - -
Acguisition 25,470 -
Transfer to investment property {21,134) -
Sale proceeds (4,336) -
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The table above shows the transactions concerning the purchase and sale of TLC Care Homes Limited. On
7 December 2018, the Group acquired a subsidiary, TLC Care Homes Limited, for £25,470,000 consisting
of investment property and a care home business with the exclusive intent to sell the subsidiary business.
At acquisition, the fair value of the investment property was £21,134,000 and the fair value of the assets
and liabilities less selling costs of the care home business was £4,336,000. The care home business was sold
immediately following acquisition for £4,336,000.

16. Portfolio Net Asset Value

The abjective of the Portfolic Net Asset Value ("Portfolio NAV”) measure is to highlight the fair value of the
net assets on an ongoing, long-term basis, which aligns with the Group’s business strategy as an cngoing
REIT with a long-term investment outlook. This Portfolio NAV is made available on a quarterly basis on the
Company’s website and announced via RNS.

For the period from 14 November 2017 to 21 December 2018 the Company had 302,000,000 C shares in issue.
During that period the results, assets and liabilities attributable to the C shares were accounted for in a
separate pool 1o those of the Ordinary shares and thus the Company announced a quarterly Portfolio NAV for
both share classes.

Under IFRS accounting rules, the C shares are recognised in the financial statements as a liability valued at
amortised cost which represents the value of the assets and liabilities attributable to the C share pool (see
note 21). Thus, the net assets of the Company disclosed in the financial statements are equal to the net assets
attributable to the Ordinary shareholders.

On 21 December 2018 the C shares were converted to Ordinary shares as detailed in note 21.

In order to arrive at Portfolio Net Asset Value for each share class, adjustments are made to the IFRS Net Asset
Value (“IFRS NAV”) reported in the consolidated financial statements such that;

iy The C share liability, equivalent to the net assets attributable to the C shareholders is added back
to net assets, because under IFRS accounting rules the C shares are recognised as a liability. (Please
refer to note 21 for more details).

ily The hypothetical sale of properties will take place on the basis of a sale of a corporate vehicle
rather than a sale of underlying property assets. This assumption reflects the basis upon which the
Company’s assets have been assembled within specific SPVs.

iity The hypothetical sale will take place in the form of a single portfolio disposal.

371 March 2014 31 March 2018

1'000 £000

Net asset value per the consolidated financial statements 666,508 369,395

Add back C share hability - 298,752

Value of asset pools 666,508 668,147
Effects of the adoption to the assumed, hypothetical sale of properties as a

portfolic and on the basis of sale of a corporale vehicle 74,662 33.124

Portfolio Net Asset Value 741,170 701,271
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After reflecting these amendments, the movement in net assets since inception is as follows:

For the
vear ended
31 March 2019

From
18 November 2016
10 31 March 2018

£'000 £°000
Opening rasernves at start of penod 70,271 (31}
Net issue (costs)/proceeds (56) 638,960
Operating profits (excluding capial appreciation) 26,096 8713
Capital appreciation 45,180 63,757
Finance income 491 413
Finance costs {3,975) (1,041}
Diwidends paid to Ordinary and C shareholders (27.847) (10,500}
Portfolio Net Assets at 31 March 2019w ) 741,170 701 '2_’:{“

Value is represented by:

31 barch 2019

31 March 2018

£'o00 f'oco
Investment property using the portfolio valuation method 901,580 549,346
Net current assets 44,746 242,747
Bank borrowings {205,156) (90,822)
Portfolio Net Assets 741,170 701,271
Shares n 1ssue 622,461,380 See below
Portfolio Net Asset Value per share 119.07p See below
The table below shows the figures at 31 March 2018 split between the asset pools.
Value is represented by:
Ordinary C
share pool share pool Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
Investment property using the portfolio valuation method 471,525 77821 549,348
Net current assets 17802 224,945 242,747
Bank borrowings {90,822) - 190,822)
Portfolic Net Assets 398,505 302,766 701,271
Shares imissue ) 350,000,000 302,000,000
Porifolio Net Asset Value per share 113 86p 100 25p
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31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Amounts falling due in less than one year £1030 £'000
Rent recevable 2,954 175
Less provision for impairment (421) -
Netrentrecenadle I o 2533 s
Accrued income 2,778 2,398
Bebtor ansing from rent straight line adjustments - 332
Prepayments and other receivables 412 410
Total S 7 Tsyp3 3315

Prepayments and other receivables amount above includes prepaid legal and professional fees of £343,000
(2018: £393,000) that have been incurred in connection with the acquisitions yet to be completed.

31 March 2018

31 March 2018

Amounts falling due after more than ane year £°008 £'050
Debtor ansing from straight line adjusiments 791 -
Lease incertives 6,033 -
S T Ces2a -

The aged analysis of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired was as follows:

21 March 2018

31 March 2018

{000 £:000
Current 991 -
< 30 days 353 175
30-60 days 499 -
= BO days 1,11 -
o ) - o o 2,954 i _—;Nw—i{:ﬁ_
Less provision for impairment (421) -~
'i'otafﬁ o T S N o ) S 2,533 S 175_

The Directors consider the fair value of receivables equals their carrying amount.

The table above shows the aged analysis of trade receivables included in the table above which are past due.
The pravision for impairment principally relates to First Priority Housing Association (“First Priority”).

Other categories within trade and other receivables do not include impaired assets.
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18. Cash and cash equivalents
31 March 2018

31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
Cash held by sohcitors 17,031 12,262
Liguidity funds 13,394 210,969
Cash held at bank 16,703 20,094
Unrestnicted cash and cash equivalents 47128 243,325
Restricted cash 7218 6,283
Total o 54347 249,608

Liquidity funds refer to money placed in money market funds. These are highly liquid funds with accessibility
within 24 hours and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash held by lawyers is money held in escrow for expenses expected to be incurred in relation to investment
properties pending completion. These funds are available immediately on demand.

Restricted cash represents retention money held by lawyers in relation to deferred payments subject to
achievement of certain conditions, other retentions and cash segregated to fund repair, maintenance and
improvement works to bring the properties up to satisfactory standards for the Group and the tenants.

Currently that amount of cash is held in escrow.

19. Trade and other payables
31 March 2019

31 March 2018

£'000 £°000
Deferred income 14 225
Acquisition costs accrued 10,074 8,366
Lease incentives payable 3,000 -
Finance costs 798 498
Dividends payable 717 427
Accruals 616 660
Income tax and corperation tax payable* 105 -
Total S s34 10,176

Acquisition costs accrued includes the balance of retention monies (as represented by £7,219,000 (2018:

£6,283,000), restricted cash as per note 18) and acquisition costs capitalised.

"Represents tax habitities incurred by subsidiary companies prior to acquisition by the Group.
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20. Bank and loan borrowings

Bank borrowings are secured by charges over individual investment properties held by certain asset-holding
subsidiaries. The banks also hold charges over the shares of certain subsidiaries and any intermediary holding
companies of those subsidiaries. Any associated fees in arranging the bank borrowings unamortised as at the

period end are offset against amounts drawn on the facilities as shown in the table below:

For the From

vear endod 18 November 2016

3" March 2009 1o 31 March 2018

£'006 £°000

Balance at start of period 92,457 -
Bark borrowings drawn 115,990 92,457
Bank borrowings drawn at end of pered 208,447 92,457
Balance at start of period {1,635} -
Less loan issue costs incurred {2,374) (1,761}
Add loar 15sue ¢costs amortised 718 128
Unamortised costs at end of penod (3,291) {1,635}
At end of penod 205,156 90,822

31 March 2018

31 March 2018

7000 £'000
Maturity of bank borrowings
Repayable within 1 year - -
Repayable between 1 to 2 years 55,947 -
Repayable between 2 10 b years 100,000 39,957
Repayable after 5 years 52,500 52,500
Tol T ~ z0saa7  g9z457

The Group is party to the following loan facility agreements:

A 10-year Sterling Term Facility Agreement dated 2 November 2017 for up to £52,500,000 with Scottish
Widows Limited. Interest is fixed at a total of 2.9936% per annum.

The borrowings include amounts secured on investment property to the value of £169,999,000 (2018:
£163,812,000).

A 3-year Sterling Revolving Facllity Agreement dated 15 November 2017 for up to £40,000,000 with Lloyds
Bank plc. Interest is charged at LIBOR +1.50% margin. During the year a £20,000,000 increase of this facility
was agreed.

The borrowings include amounts secured on investment property to the value of £144,166,000 (2018:
£97,400,000).

A 3-year Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated 28 November 2018 for up to £100,000,000 with HSBC Bank
PLC. Interest charged at LIBOR +1.70% margin.

The borrowings include amounts secured on investment property to the value of £208,953,000.

A number of covenants are in place under the three agreements. Under the 10-year facility, historical and
projected interest caver muist be at least 325% and the loan to value ratio must not exceed 40%. Under the
Lioyds Bank plc 3-year revolving credit facility, historical and projected interest cover must be at least 250%
and the loan to value ratio must not exceed 55%. Under the HSBC Bank PLC 3-year facility, historical and
projected interest cover must be at least 250% and the loan to value ratio must not exceed 60%.
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21. C shares
For the From
vear enged 18 November 2016
31 March 2019 to 31 March 2018
7000 £'000
At beginning of period 298,752 -
Proceeds from 1ssue of C shares - 302,000
C share 1ssue costs - {(6,040)
Dividends paid to C shareholders (9,966) -
Amortisation of C share hability 6,400 2,792
Corwersion to Ordinary shares (295,186) -
At end of period - 298,752

On 10 November 2017 the Company announced the issue of 302,000,000 C shares, issued at £1 per share. The
C shares are convertible preference shares. The shares were listed on the London Stock Exchange and dealing
commenced on 14 November 2017.

Holders of C shares are not entitled to receive notice of, attend, speak or vote at general meetings of the
Company.

Under TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, the C shares meet the definition of a financial liability
rather than equity and are presented in the financial statements as a liability of the Company carried at
amortised cost.

The funds were raised in order to finance a number of property acquisitions and C shares were issued rather
than Ordinary shares so that the issue costs associated with the fund raise and the costs associated with the
property acquisitions did not dilute the Ordinary share NAV.

In order to calculate the net assets attributabie to each share class, the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to the C shares are identified in a separate pool to the results, assets and liabilities of the Ordinary shares. A
share of fund level expenses for the period is allocated toa the C shares based on the net assets of each share
class pool.

It should be noted that these financial statements include all results, assets and liabilities of both share class
pools, however, as the C shares are classified as a liability, net assets are reduced by the value of the C shares
liability which is also equivalent to the net assets of the C share pool.

On 21 December 2018 the C shares were converted to Ordinary shares in the ratio 0.902190 new Ordinary
shares for every 1 C share held. The conversion ratio was calculated with reference to the respective portfolio
net asset values of the C shares and Ordinary shares at close of business on the calculation date.

Accordingly 272,461,380 Ordinary shares were issued.
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22. Share capital
Share capital represents the nominal value of consideration received by the Company for the issue of Ordinary
shares.

For the From
year ended 18 November 2016
31 BMarch 2019 to 31 March 2018
606 £'000
Share capital
At beginning of penod 3,500 -
Shares 1ssued 2,725 3,500
At end of periad 7 7 L 6225 3.500
Number of shares 1ssued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £0 01 each
At beginning of penod 350,000,000 100
Shares 1ssued 272,461,380 349,999 300
;enggf peri(;jy T N . 622,461,380 ) 350,000,0},\“;

The Company’s Ordinary shares were admitted to the premium listing segment of the Official List of the FCA
and to trading on the London Stock Exchange on 18 November 2016, raising £350 million. As a result of the
IPO, on 18 November 2016, 349,999,900 shares at £0.01 per share were issued, fully paid.

On 21 December 2018 the Company issued 272,461,380 Ordinary shares in respect of the conversion of
302,000,000 C shares. The fair value of assets representing the C share pool at that date was £295,186,000,

23. Share premium reserve
The share premium reserve represents the amounts subscribed for Ordinary share capital in excess of nominal
value less associated issue costs of the subscriptions.

For the From

year endoed 18 November 2016

31 March 2019 to 31 March 2018

008 £'000

At beginning of perod - -
Premiurn ansing on shares issued 292,461 346,500
Share issue costs (66} (7.00C)
Transfer to capital reduction reserve - {339,500}
At end of period 292,405 -

At a Board meeting on 15 November 2016, a resolution was passed authorising the cancellation of the share
premium account and it was conditional upon the three following terms:

» admission of the Ordinary shares to listing on the UK Listing Authority’s Official List;
+ trading on London Stock Exchange’s Main Market for listed securities; and
= approval of the Court for the reduction of share capital.

In order to cancel the share premium account the Company needed to obtain a court order, which was received
on 1 February 2017. An SH19 form was sent to Companies House with a copy of the court order on 1 February
2017 and the certificate of cancellation was issued by Companies House on 13 February 2017.

Upon cancellation of the share premium account, the funds were transferred to the capital reduction reserve
and these funds are classified as amounts available for distribution.
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24. Capital reduction reserve

The capital reduction reserve is a distributable reserve to which the value of the cancelled share premium has

been transferred. Dividends can be paid from this reserve.

Foi the
yaar ended
31 March 2018

From
18 November 2016
t0 31 Margh 2018

£600 £'000
At beginning of perrod 331,625 -
Transfer from the share prermium reserve - 339.500
Dividends paid in the penod (as per note 14) - (7875}
At end of period 331,625 331,625
25. Retained earnings
This reserve represents the profits and losses of the Group.
For the From

year ended
31 March 2018

18 November 2016
10 31 March 2018

£'000 £'000
At beginning of penod 34,270 (31)
Profit for the pericd 19,864 36.926
Dwvidends paid 1n the penod (as per note 14} {17.881) {2,625}
Atend of period B ] 38253 34270

26. Net asset value

Basic NAV per share is calculated by dividing net assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the number of Ordinary shares cutstanding at the end

of the period.

Diluted NAV per share is calculated by adjusting net assets for the conversion of the C shares.

Net asset values have been calculated as follows:

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Net assets (£'000} 666,508 369,395
Number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue at end of penod 622,461,380 350,000,000
NAV - basic 107.08p 05 54p
Net assets (£'000) 666,508 362,395
Adjust tor the effect of the C shares converuing (£'000) - 298,752
Adjusted net assets (£0000 T o 7 eees08 668147
Nurber of Grdinary shares in 1ssue at end of penod 622,461,380 350,000,000
Number of Ordinary shares that would be 1ssued on the conversion of C shares - 283,065,815
Toal T T T T Tep0.461,380 633,065,815
NAV - diluted 107.08p 105 54p
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27. Reconciliation of liabilities to cash flows from financing

For the

C share Bank vear ended

liabibity borrowings 31 March 2019

£:000 £'000 £'G60

Baltance at the beginming of the perod 298,752 90,822 388,574
Cash flows from financing activities

Loan draw down - 115,890 115,990

Loar arrangament costs paid - (2.374) {2,374)

Dividends paid to C shareholders in the penod {9,566) - (9,966)

Non cash movements

Amorusation of loan arrangement costs - 718 718

Amorusation of C shares habality 6,400 - 6,400

C share conversion {295,186) - [295,186)

o T T T - o T - - 20;158- 205,156

Summary of non cash transactions

On 21 December 2018 the C shares were converted to Ordinary shares in the ratio 0.902190 new Ordinary
shares for every 1 C share held. The conversion ratio was calculated with reference to the respective portfolio
net asset values of the C shares and Ordinary shares at close of business on the calculation date. The fair value
of assets represented by the C share pool, being the deemed consideration, was £295,186,000.

28. Operating leases

The Group is party to a number of operating leases on its investment properties with Registered Providers.
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating l